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No. C965349
Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
BETWEEN:
Anita Endean, as representative plaintiff
Plaintiff
AND:
The Canadian Red Cross Society
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province of British Columbia, and
The Attorney General of Canada
Defendants
AND:
Prince George Regional Hospital, Dr. William Galliford,
Dr. Robert Hart Dykes, Dr. Peter Houghton, Dr. John Doe,
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, and Her Majesty the Queen
in Right of the Province of British Columbia
Third Parties
Proceeding under the Class Proceedings Act, R.8.B.C. 1996, C. 50

AFFIDAVIT
I,J.J. CAMP, Q.C., Barrister and Solicitor, of 4® Floor, 555 West Georgia Street,

DO SOLEMNLY AFFIRM AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. 1 am the solicitor of record for the representative plaintiff in this matter and as such
I have knowledge of the facts to which I depose in this affidavit, except where [ state them to.be

on information and belief and where so stated I verily believe them to be true.

2. I make this affidavit in support of an application to this Court to approve class

counsel fees in the lump sum amount of $15,000,000 plus all reasonable disbursements plus all

QDMAGAPWISE\NCC_OOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:84387.)



applicable taxes. This same sum is being sought by class counsel in Quebec and by class counse|
in Onuario. Class counsel for the hemophiliacs is secking approval of class counsel fees in this
court of $500,000 plus all reasonable disbursements plus all applicable taxes. Class counsel for
the hemophiliacs is seeking approval by the Quebec court of a further $2,000.000 and from the

Ontario court of a further $5,000,000, making a total of $7,500,000.

3. I have been sentor counsel on this matter since it was commenced in September,
1996.

My Experience and Qualifications

4. I was called to the bar in 1970 and practiced in the field of civil litigation in British

Columbia ever since. In addition, I have had occasional calls in several other Provinces and
Territories. From 1970 to 1993 I practiced at Ladner Downs and since 1993 I have practiced at
Camp Church & Associates ("CC&A™"). [ have argued cases at all levels of court, including

approximately 15 cases before the Supreme Court of Canada.

5. I ha'vc received the following appointments and held the following positions:
(a) Queen’s Counsel, 1986;
(b) President of the BC Branch of the Canadian Bar Association,1982-1983;
(c) National President of the Canadian Bar Association, 1991-1992;
(d) Fellow of the American College of Trial Lawyers, 1996; and

(e) Fellow of the International Academy of Trial Lawyers,1993.

L OOMANGAPWISE\CC DOM.CC_PO.SSOATA:04387.Y
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6. _ ‘During the early part of my career [ acted for a number of insurers but over the
course of time I smhed to act for more and more plaintiffs in tort cases, particularly in product
liability matters, and more particularly in the aviation field. In 1987 1 became involved in
pursuing personal injury and death claims associated with the inhalation of asbestos fibres as weli
as property damage claims arising from the installation of asbestos containing materials in
buildings, industrial installations and ships. This occupied a great deal of my time from 1987 to
1995 and still occupies a small percentage of my time. My practicc has also always included

some medical malpractice cases.

7. My involvement in asbestos litigation provided particularly relevant experience to
this litigation because:
(@) it gave me experience with mass tort litigation principles and strategies, as
well as class action counsel and class action litigation principles and
strategies in the U.S,;
®) the ésbcstos disease process was similar to the HCV disease process insofar
as both were and are part of an emerging body of medical science and both
have long latency periods and potentially catastrophic consequences; and
© it gave me experience in complex and substantial settlement negotiations.
1 was part of a negotiating team that settled asbestos related claims both in
the personal injury and property damage arenas that now exceed $50

million in this jurisdiction.
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8. [ have also had considerable experience dealing with legal and other issues at the
political level. For example, during my term as National President of the Canadian Bar
Association I was heavily engaged in the constirutional issues surrounding the Charlottetown
Accord. This required me 10 deal with and obtain a consensus of Canadian Bar Association

leaders across Canada and to regularly confer with politicians at all levels on the subject.

9. Because of my experience with mass tort claims, U.S. class proceedings and U.S.
class counsel. | was asked by the Attorney General of British Columbia in 1995 to act as a
consultant in the possible formulation of legisiation permitting class action proceedings in British
Columbia. Iattended meetings with representatives of the Ministry of the Attorney General and
members of the British Columbia bar to discuss issues pertaining to the formulation of the Class
.Proceedings Act (the "Act”) which became lav/ in 1995. Hence, [ was reasonably knowledgeable
about the Act and how class-action litigatibn might be exploited by class-action counse! in British

Columbia.

10. During the last ten years of my career approximately, I have acted predominantly
for British Columbia plaintiffs in product liability cases on a contingency fee basis with my firm
carrying all disbursements and case expenses. In those cases, my contingency fee percentage

recovery has ranged from 25 to 40% depending on the circumstances of the case.

11. During my career I have also acted on several contingency fee cases in which [
have not been successful. For example, I acted on a contingency fee basis for a grade 10 student

who was rendered quadriplegic as a result of a school yard accident during a gym class. The case

~OOMAIGRAPWISE\CC_DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:64287.1 -4-
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was hard fought in a long trial, was appealed to the British Columbia Court of Appeal and leave

was sought to the Supreme Court of Canada. I lost the case at every level and in so doing

committed over $300,000 in time at my then hourly rates and over $150.000 in disbursements,

none of which was recovered.

T mine nt of this Litigati

12. In late February, 1996, Bruce Lemer ("Lemer") approached me to consider acting

as senior counsel on an initiative to launch a class proceeding on bebalf of HCV claimants in

British Columbia against the Canadian Red Cross Society ("CRC") and the Federal Crown and

the Province of British Columbia ("British Columbia™). He had been invited 1o a meeting of

HCV sufferers who had invited several diffcrent lawyers to speak to them concerning the

possibility of acting for them in a class-action.

13. 1 met at some length with Lemer to discuss the proposed class proceeding. We

identified the following categories of risks at that time:

(a)
®)

©
(d)

(e)

the factual and legal underpinnings were undeveloped;

some individual actions across Canada had been commenced but so far as
he was aware, they were all dormant;

the CRC had resisted all tainted blood litigation to that time;

the F;deral Crown and British Columbia would probably raise the policy
defence to any negligence action; and

the only cases in Canada which had sought certification of tainted blood

issues had been denied certification.

-5
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14. - Militating against these risks in a small measure was the fact that the Federal and
Provincial and Territorial Governments ("FPT Governments”) had set a precedent by making
compensation available to persons infected with HIV as a result of blood transfusion. However.
| that compensation was very modest and unilaterally imposed without any input or negotiations by

or on behalf of the claimants.

15. Lemer and I concluded that a HCV class proceeding would be a major undertaking
and it would very likely be vigorously resisted by the FPT Governments and the CRC. all of

whom appeared to have unlimited resources.

16. On March 9, 1996 I attended at the meeting of potential HCV claimants and
advised them how Lemer, with the support of his then firm, and I, with the support of CC&A,
proposed to handle a possible British Columbia HCV class proceeding. I indicated that the class
proceeding would be risky and very expensive and would take a long time to conclude. On the
subject of legal disbursements, I indicated that out-of-pocket expenses may reach or exceed
$500,000. I indicated that we would bc.prcparcd to act on what I called a "pure contingency fee
basis”, that is, a sliding percentage scale up to 33 and1/3 percent of any settlement or judgment
with no expectation of the HCV claimants funding any disbursements. I sensed "a huge sigh of
reiief" from the HCV sufferers and their family members when I made this proposal. So far as

I could tell, we were the only lawyers who were willing to act on a pure contingency basis.

17. A few days after this meeting, I was informed that the HCV sufferers had

collectively asked Lemer and I to act for them but they wanted us to consider including one of the

:ODMANGRPWISENCC _DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:64387.1 -6- .
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other lawyers who made a presentation, David Butcher, as part of our team if possible. We held
discussions with Mr. Butcher which culminated in a letter dated April 18, 1996, a copy of which
is attached as Exhibit "A". An agreement was reached with Mr. Butcher and he was not made
part of our team. At or about this time, Sharon Matthews ("Matthews"), an associate lawyer with

my firm, began t0 work on this matter.

18. Throughout the summer of 1996, CC&A and Lemer undertook legal and facrual

research and drafted the Writ of Summons and Statement of Claim, Throughout the course of our

investigation and legal analysis, it had become apparent that the best cause of action ran from
approximately August 1, 1986 to July, 1990 and the action was limited to infections which
occurred in that time frame in order to enhance the chances of having the case certified. Because
there was a different liability case for those persons infected outside that time frame, Matthews
and | spoke with and met with David Kletn ("Klein") on several occasions about acting for the
pre-August, 1986 and post-July, 1990 HCV sufferers and to commence a class-action on their

behalf which would follow our class-action.

19. On September 18, 1996, Anita Endean ( "Endean”), the representative plaintiff,
advised my firm that she wanted the benefit of independent legal advice before executing the
proposed fee agreement, but she instructed us to file the Writ of Summons and Statement of Claim
in her name. The Writ of Summons and Stgtcmcm of Claim were i§sucd on September 19, }996.
On September 20, 1996, Endean advised that she had received the benefit of independent legal
advice and that she had signed the fee agreement dated October 16, 1997, a copy of which is

attached as Exhibit "B".

::ODMAVGAPWISE\CC _DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:84387.1



Certification

20. On October 1, 1996 we sought the agreement of the CRC to toll limitation periods
pertaining to class members until the court had decided the issue of class cemification. Attached
as Exhibit "C "iis a copy of a letter dated October 8, 1996 from Lemer to counsel for}the CRC
confirming that the CRC would not agree. This, among other reasons, caused us to embark on

a "hurry up offence” to strive to have the certification hearing as quickly is possible.

21. During fall of 1996, the CRC issued third party proceedings against all hospitals

and doctors who had treated the representative plaintiffs during the material time.

22. Throughout the fall and winter of 1996 and the early spring of 1997 we prepared
for the cerufication hearing by:

(@) exchanging pleadings;

(b) issuing and responding to interrogatories;

(c) issuing demands for the discovery of documents;

(d) issuing third party notices;

(e) issuing particulars;

() reviewing literally thousands of documents;

() preparing the application to cenify including dechlopmcm of the common

issues and voluminous affidavit material;
) preparing for and attending at several pre-certification conferences:

6)) amending pleadings;

':OWA\GRPWISE\CC _DOM.CC PO.SSDATA:$4387.1



6} preparing for and attending at contested motions including document
production by the CRC;

(k) preparing for and attending at three days of cross-examination on affidavits:

and
%)) responding to outstanding request for information.
23. At the same time, CC&A and Lemer continued legal and factual analysis on both

the certification and liability issues. Lemer, Matthews and 1 attended meetings with
knowledgeable experts in the field including Dr. Sherlock, a Vancouver virologist, Dr. Vaughan,
an Australian haematologist who had expertise in blood banking issues, particularly with HCV,
in support of the certification motion and began making contacts with other medical experts
pertaining to the liability case. Literally bundreds of articles on the subject of HCV were read

and digested. Pertinent evidence from the Krever Commission was collected and reviewed.

24. Certification of the negligence issues was vigorously resisted by the CRC and third
party doctors and hospitals in a five day hearing in March, 1997. The Federal Crown and British
Columbia resisted certification on the spoilation issues. Counsel for the CRC indicated to the court
at the outset of the certification hearing that the CRC would demonstrate that certification would

fail on every single issue.

25. The CRC'’s strategy was to demonstrate the vastness and complexity of the issues
sought to be certified. The material filed on the certification hearing was many volumes thick.

The medical issues were very complex and required a great deal of study and investigation. The

-9.
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joinder of the third party doctors and hospitals by the CRC served to complicate matters by raising

duty to warn and comparative fault issues and the third parties opposed certification.

26. At that time, there were six other HCV related cases in British Columbia and they
were all inactive. Attached as Exhibit "D" is a copy of a letter from Susan Beach, counsel for the
plaintiff in that action, which points out the "exorbitant disbursements” and the "multiple medical
experis” needed and that the plaintiff could not afford to fund the disbursements. Ms. Beach
informed me on or about the end of January, 1997 that the case was dormant and would not likely

be revived.

27. The certification legal issues were both complex and largely maters of first
impression. This was the first certification hearing pertaining to an HCV class action in Canada.
Jurisprudence under the Act was in its developmental stage. The parties primarily argued
Ontario, Quebec .and American authorities. The breadth and volume of the certification material
filed by the CRC and the length and complexity of the arguments and jurisprudence presented by
counsel for the CRC, depict the vigour with which this case was defended by the CRC at

certification.

28. On May 22, 1997, this Court issued Reasons for Judgment granting the certification

motion.

-10-
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Certification Appeal

29, The CRC appeaied the cerntification as did the FPT Governments and the third
parties. The CRC filed a very thorough and well researched Facrum. Substantial preparation and
legal research went into preparing our Factum. The appeal was set 10 be heard by the British
Columbia Court of Appeal in March, 1998 for three days. The CRC abandoned their aépeal a
few days before the hearing and only after sertlement discussions had commenced with the FPT

Governments,

Spoliation

30. InJanuary, 1997, John Grace, the Information Commissioner of Canada, concluded
an investigation of a complaint against Health Canada concerning the destruction of verbatim
transcripts of meetings of the Canadian Blood Committee from and after 1980 which covered the
period of time to which this action pertains. Matthews undertook research into the possibility of
an independent cause of action for the destruction of evidence. As a result of some emerging
Canadian jurisprudence and some settled but divergent US authorities, [ determined that a
potential cause of action could be constructed to lead the claimants directly to judgment.
Furthermore, the factual allegations gave rise to a viable claim for punitive damages. We
amended our pleadings to plead spoliation against the Federal Crown and British Columbia, both
of which reserved their rights to argue that spoliation did not constitute a cause of action for the

purposes of certifying the class proceeding.

31 This issue was hotly contested at the certification hearing and Mr. Justice Smith

ruled in our favour and certified the spoliation issue. This issue was appealed to the British

-11-
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Columbia Court of Appeal which necessitated further research. The British Columbia Court of

Appeal overturned Mr. Justice Smith.

32. The Federal Crown and British Columbia took the position that striking the claim
of spoliation meant that the claim for punitive damages must aiso be struck. The resolution of this
issue required an appearance before the Registrar who referred the matter back to the Court of

Appeal panel. The issue was sertled in our favour.

33. CC&A sought leave to appeal this matter from the Supreme Court of Canada. The
FPT Governments sought my agrécment to stay any further appeal process pending good faith
settlement negotiations. I refused and pressed on with the leave motion. The Supreme Court of
Canada granted leave to appeal and an appeal date is set for December 10, 1999. So faraslam
aware, ouf allegation that spoliation constituted a cause of action was a novel legal argument in
Canada. [ had previously been successful in the Supreme Court of Canada dcfending the
proposition that a plea which reveals an arguable or difficult point of law or which explores the
frbmicr of the expanding legal system, should not be cut off and I was therefore reasonably

confident of success on this appeal.

Post Certi i u
34, Immediately after the certification order our work expanded geometrically.
35. We adopted the strategy at this time of vigorously pressing ahead with a trial on

the common issues. We issued demands for list of documents and we started t0 get our experts
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geared up to prepare reports for the trial on the common issues. We continued to thoroughly
analyse and digest the law in this emerging area. For example, attached as Exhibit "E" is a copy
of a memorandum dated June 9, 1997 developed by Matthews pertaining to relevant US
authorities. We conferred with counsel from ‘Ireland. England, Ausiralia and the US who were

knowledgeable about HCV litigation.

36. In addition, British Columbia had undertaken a Blood Recipient Notification
Program. We attended meetings with the doctors, statisticians and Ministry of Health personnel
responsible for running this program so as to ensure that we could become fully familiar with the
program ind link the program with class membership. A large number of class claimants

approached CC&A and additional resources had to be found to deal with this influx.

37. By the fall of 1997, approximately 250 potential class members had registered with
my firm. A dedicated toll-free telephone line for HCV claimants was established. Trace back
procedures, hospital records and other relevant information was amassed on behalf of many of
these HCV claimants. The press, which had been following the litigation from the outset,

heightened its interest as a result of the certification.

38. Up to this time, we enjoyed a close working relationship with the Hepatitis C
Society of Canada. In November, 1997 Matthews attended their Annual General Meeting to
report on developments in British Columbia and to gain the benefit of the medical presentations

and the views of persons infected with HCV.

.OOMAVGRPWISE\CC_DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:84387.1 -13-



39. In late November, 1997 the Krever Report was released and Matthews attended in
Ouawa for its release and meetings with other counsel working on HCV cases. We briefed.

digested and reported to all potential class members summarizing the Krever Reporr.

E li t of rk di Y Cl ounsel

40. Other Canadian counsel who had been following the BC certification proposed a
meeting to explore a pan-Canadian litigation strategy. Matthews, Lemer and [ attended a meeting
of counsel in Toronto on August 15, 1997. Approximately 20 lawyers were there including
Harvey Strosberg, Q.C. ("Strosberg”) who had given notice of an intention to commence an
Ontario HCV class proceeding with a team of lawyers from most of the provinces which did not
have class proceedings legislation, and Pierre Lavigne ("Lavigne") who had initiated an HCV
class proceeding in Quebec. At this meeting and in subsequent conferences, we forged a cross
Canada coalition of lawyers (the "Coalition") to advance the interest of our HCV class members
including strategies to put pressure on the FPT Governments to offer compensation to the HCV
class members. Attached as Exhibit "F" is a copy of my letter dated September 24, 1997 setting

forth my véry prelimipary thoughts on compensation.

Settlement Negotiations

November 1997 - April 1998

a1. Although all parties were waiting on t.h; Krever Report to be ha.pded down by the
end of November, 1997, I tried to open up settlement negotiations by writing directly to the
Federal Minister of Health. Attached as Exhibit "G" is a copy of my letter dated November 18,

1997 to the Honourable Allan Rock.

-14-
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42. I took on the task of spearheading the negotiations on a Canada wide basis. The
Krever Report was very critical of the CRC and the FPT Governments. Although the Federal
Government was willing to consider settlement negotiations they requireq Provincial government
participation. The Provincial governments adopted the uniform stance that the medical health care
scheme in Canada was sufficient to address the problem. Attached as Exhibit "H" is a copy of a
typical newspaper article, in this case the Toronto Star of September 11, 1?96, reiterating the
position of the Provinces. Because our class action was the furthest advanced. the Coalition asked
me to try and break the log jam and get British Columbia to the settlement table. [ mobilized our
class members 10 lobby the Premier and Provincial Minister of Health. I, along with others,

initiated calls to Members of the Legislative Assembly in both Government and Opposition.

43, During this period of time it became clear to us that although the CRC was
maintaining a "scorched earth” litigation policy, they were also keen on brokering a settlement
if possible. The CRC did not have very much money to contribute but they did have "their good

offices” and other intangibles including knowledgeable and competent counsel.

44. The Krever Report recommended a no-fault approach to compensation and the
Coalition was concerned that the FPT Governments would adopt the approach they had used in
the HIV litigation context and institute a "take it or leave it compensation package". The strategy
we developed was to use the certification of the British Columbia class action to induce British
Columbia to get the negotiations started as it was unlikely that British Columbia would take

measures that interfered with a class that had already been certified by a British Columbia court.

ODMA\GRPWISE\CC DOM.CC_PO.SSOATA:64387.1 -15-



Thus, [ urged the Governments to negotiate a settlement within the structure of the Act. This

approach seem to find some measure of favour with British Columbia and certainly with the CRC.

45, The major tasks undertaken shortly after the issuance of the Krever Report were

as follows:

(a)

(®)

©

S ODMAVGRPWISENCC DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:84387.Y

on December 15, 1997 I wrote a draft letter to the Coalition, the Heparitis

C Society of Canada and others. The draft included proposals for consent

certifications in Ontario and Quebec with a national sub-class to cover the

remaining provincial jurisdictions. The letter also contained a broad outline
of the matters to be addressed in settlement many of which eventually were
incorporated into the final settlement;

[ organized a press conference in Vancouver on Déccrnbcr 16, 1997 to'urge
the FPT Governments to commence settlement negotiations. We had
apprdximatcly six of our class members appear and speak about their
condition, circumstances and need for compensation;

a conference call of approximately 16 Coalition lawyers and representatives
of the Hepatitis C Society of Canada was held on December 16, 1997.
The playing field was extremely complex. Some of the issues to be
addressed included: (1) differences between the certified BC action and
other class actions which had not been certified; (2) differences between
pre-1986 and post-1990 HCV sufferers who vastly outnumbered the 1986-
1990 HCYV sufferers; (3) liability differences between HCV hemophiliac

sufferers and HCV non-hemophiliac sufferers; (4) how to handle the

-16-
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probable demise of the CRC and the transition to a new blood agency; (5)
differences between those jurisdictions that had class action legislation and
those jurisdictions which did not; (6) how to deai with the rift between the
Federal Government and the PT Governments on getting negotiations
started; (7) how to deal with the rift between some of the PT Governments
- Quebec and Saskatchewan had both made public pronouncements in
favour of compensating HCV sufferers; and (8) how to reconcile the
differences in approach between the Hepatitis C Society of Canada and the
Coalition. It was impossible to obtain consensus on all these issues but it
was clear to me that we had to move swiftly and we had to take the
imitiative. I sent out my draft settlement letter of Dcccm&:r 15, 1997 in

final form on December 17, 1997, a copy of which is marked Exhibit "I".

46. v Over the ensuing weeks, I learned from the FPT Governments that my letter of
December 17, 1997 had an extraordinarily wide circulation across Canada. Representatives of
the Ministry of Health of all FPT Governments were meeting in late January, 1998 to discuss the .
matter. In the meantime I pushed on with the British Columbia class action. In my opinion, it was
extremely important at this juncture to show that we had the fortitude and resources to force the
matter to a litigation conclusion if nccessary‘. I reinforced this at every opportunity. For example,
we succcssfully opposed an applicgtion by the CRC to havc_: the appeal of the Ccniﬁcation of the

class heard by a five judge panel.

-17-

HOOMAMGHPWISEICC_OOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:84387.%



47. Throughout early 1998 [ continued to liaise with the Coalition to promote -

strategies to bring the FPT Governments to the table:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

L ODMANGRPWISE\CC _DOM.CC_PO.SSOATA:84397.1

Attached as Exhibit "J” is a copy of my letter dated January 26, 1998 to

the Coalition making several suggestions pertaining to settlement strategies;

on January 29, 1998, the Coalition evinced a concern was that the FPT

Govemmcx;ts would attempt an "end run" the around the British Columbia

class action which had been certified. and the Ontario and Quebec class

actions which were moving toward certification, by passing legislation

similar to the package offered to the HIV victims without any opportunity

to ncgoﬁatc on behalf of the class claimants. The FPT Governments had
indicated publicly that they were discussing the issue of compensation for
HCV claimants and would be meeting again in mid-February, 1998. We
proposed that our class members publicly demand that thcy be invited to
any bargaining table. Attached as Exhibit K is a copy of the minutes
gcﬁcrawd by Matthews from the January 29, 1998 conference call;

on January 30, 1998 I wrote to counsel for British Columbia, Clif Prowse
("Prowse") and counsel for the Federal Crown, John Haig, Q.C. ("Haig")
and demanded that the claimants and their lawyers have a seat at the table
to discuss compensation. A copy of my letter dated January 30, 1998 to0
Prowse and Haig is attached as Exhibit "L";

I spoke with Prowse and Haig and alerted them to our growing sense of

frustration. Antached as Exhibit "M" is a copy of my letter dated February

-18-

ot

e

ESt

o



(e)

9y

®)

(b)

3, 1998 to Prowse and Haig indicating that | intended to hold a further |
press conference on February 6, 1998;

[ artempted to coordinate our efforts across Canada on this issue. Bill
Selnes, the lead lawyer in Saskatchewan, was arranging a press conference
for February 5, 1998 to publicly reicase my December 17, 1998 letter. |
provided material to Clint Docken, the lead lawyer in Alberta, who had
scheduled a press conference in Alberta for February 6, 1998;

on February 4, 1998 I received a letter from Prowse indicating that he and
his client were prepared to meet and engage in "without prejudice”
negotiations. On February 4, 1998 I had an extensive discussion with
Prowse on the subject of possible settlement;

1 also continued to consult with the CRC. Bob Rae, the former Premier of

- Ontario, was retained 1o negotiate blood litigation matters on behalf of the

CRC. He and I had some communications and on February 6, 1998, just
prior to the press conference I had arranged, he telephoned me 1o indicate -
the position of the CRC and advised that I could "go public” with that
position;

on February 6, 1998 I held a press conference at which several of our class
members were present. The thrust of the press confercﬁce is set out in the
Notice of Press Conference, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "N".
This' press conference and Lﬁo's: in Saskatchewan aﬁd Alberta gencrated

very substantial press coverage. The class members spoke movingly of
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their affliction with HCV, their need for compensation and the frustration

at not being engaged in any ongoing discussions pertaining to settlement.

48. These efforts bore fruit and on the afternoon of Febma’ry 6,1998 I held the first
face-to-face negotiations with the defendants. Inanendance was myself, Matthews and Lemer for
the plaintiffs, Prowse and Lillian Bains for British Columbia and Haig for the Federal Crown.
We agreed that the without prejudice conversations could be summarized and provided to the
Coalition. Attached as Exhibit "O" is a copy of my letter dated Fcbruﬁry 9, 1998 to the Coalition
reporting on my meeting with the defendants. Without doubt, this was a breakthrough meeting

and, as far as [ was concerned, we were now at the negotiating table.

49. On February 11, 1998 and I had a further meeting with Prowse and Haig. We
canvassed a number of subjects and the meeting is summarized in my letter dated February 12,
1998 to the Coalition, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "P". Of particular significance was

the fact that the defendants wanted to explore the possibility of a pan-Canadian settlement.

50. On February 18, 1998 I arranged a conference telephone call of the Coalition which
is summarized in my letter dated February 18, 1998 to the Coalition, a copy of which is attached
as Exhibit "Q". Of particular concern at this time was harmonizing the various élass actions
across Canada to facilitate a pan-Canadian settlement. I raised this subject with the BC counsclA
to the CRC and we worked towards harmonizing the common questions in each of the class
actions. By the end of February, 1998 we had harmonized the class definitions and the common

issues as far as possible.
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51. During February, 1998, we commissioned Dr. Anderson to prepare a
comprehensive background paper on the virology, epidemiology, clinical course, assessment and
treatment of HCV along with the psychological aspects of the disease. I wanted to take the lead
in order to shape the compensation package and to establish 1o the defeﬂdams that we knew our
business. On more than one occasion, counsel for the defendants indicated that we were "way

ahead of them".

52. During March, 1998, we continued to devise strategies to get pan-Canadian
settlement negotiations underway. Attached as Exhibit "R" is a copy of my letter dated March
4, 1998 to the Coalition updating them on the prospects of a settlement. During March, 1998 1
also continued to have one-on-one discussions with Prowse and Haig pertzining to settiement.

We identified the shape of the negotiations and the time frames.

53. In addition, Matthews, Lemer and I conferred with lawyers from Ireland, England,
Australia and the United States pertaining to HCV setement discussions ongoing in those

countries.

54. On March 27, 1998 the FPT Governments announced a $1.1 billion offer to all
Canadian 1986-1998 HCV claimants which prompted the following:

{a) a conference call to the Coalition to organize our response and during

wﬁich we mapped out futﬁre settlement stratcgics'. Attached as Exhibit

"S" is a copy of the minutes of that meeting prepared by Matthews;

21-
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®) during the days and weeks after the announcement of the offer, | was op
the telephone with various members of the Coalition and others ap average
of 4-6 hou'rs per day on matters pertaining to this file:

(c) on March 30, 1998 [ met for the first time with Ivan Whitehall. Q.C.
("Whitehall") who was the chict’ negotiator for the Federal Government
and the chief spokesperson for the FPT Gov¢rmnents. Attached as Exhibit
“T" is a copy of a memorandum dated March 30, 1998 of that lunch
meeting; and

(d) a meeting of the Coalition was arranged to establish a negotiating team
and an agenda for the negotiations. Attached as Exhibit "U" is a copy of
my letter dated March 31, 1998 to Strosberg establishing an agenda for

that meeting.

April - July 1998

55. From April, 1998, this file occupied at least 75 percent of my time and the time
of Matthews. In addition, CC&A had a legal assistant, Kim Graham, who spent almost 100%
of her time on this file, primarily communicating with class members and organizing the large
volume of paper flow that the file created. It was not uncommon for me and my firm to send and
receive a dozen or more letters, faxes and e-mails each day pertaining to HCV matters. For
example, CC&A'’s correspondence clip No.13 is two inches thick and runs from May 5 to May

12, 1998 and correspondence clip No. 14 is three inches thick and runs from May 13 to May

22, 1998.
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56. The April 7, 1998 meeting was attended by approximately 20 lawyers. Auached
as Exhibit "V" is a copy of my letter to the Coalition dated April 9, 1998 attaching the minutes
prepared by Matthews of that meeting. At that meeting, the Coalition:
. (@) established a Negotiating Committee to negotiate on a pan-Canadian basis.
I was the member of the committee from British Columbia :
M) established subcommittees to address the following issues:
) Search For Other Sources of Funds;
) Imeres& Group Liaison;
(iii) - Jurisdiction and Harmonization of Classes;
(iv)  Analysis of Class Size, Disease Modelling and Damages:
) Notification and Advertising; and
(vi)  Liability.
Matthews or Lemer served on each of these subcommittees and I advised the
Coalition that it was imperative that each person who served be prepared to make

this matter a first priority.

57. The Negotiating Committee eventually consisted of myself as Chair and
representing British Columbia, CIiff Sutts, a solicitor and partner of Strosberg, Paul Lamek
Q.C., a very experienced senior counsel, and Doug Elliott, an experienced counsel in tainted
blood marters representing Ontario and Dawna Ring, a lawyer with extensive experience in
(;aimcd blood matters ‘rcprcscming the non-t;lass—action provinces, -and P.ierre Lavigne
("Lavigne"),co-counsel in the Quebec class action and a lawyer who had taken the primary role

on HCV matters at the Krever Inquiry and Miche! Savonitto, his co-counsel in the Quebec class-
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action and well experienced in biood iitigaxion. representing Quebec. Strosberg, lead counsel
for the Ontario and national class-action, felt that it made good political sense for him not to be
"front and centre" at this tirﬁe. I agreed with this assessment. He nevertheless continued to play
a pivotal role. In my estimation, the Negotiating Committee had a formidable array of litigation

talent as well as lawyers who were extremely well versed in tainted blood litigation.

58. Prowse was appointed the chief spokesperson for the Provincial and Territorial
Governments ("PT Governments"). This proved to be helpful because we had a good
relationship and we were both from Vancouver. Whitehall chaired the negotiations for the

Federal Government and was the chief spokesperson for the FPT Governments.

59. In the meantime, we were forging ahead on the litigation front. My strategy was
to keep the pressure on the defendants which 1 felt would both speed up negotiations and show
the defendants that "we meant business”. We were continuing to demand documents. amend our

pleadings, set the trial of the common issues and the like.

60. The negotiations raised issues particular to the British Columbia class. They
included:

(a) Klein acted for persons infected before August 1, 1986 and therefore
represented persons within and without the $1.1 billion offer and could not
be included in the negotiations because of this conflict. By representing
the BC clasé in the negotiations, I was effectively representing a portion

of his class and this problem needed to be addressed: and
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) the $1.1. billion also included secondarily infected persons and the estates
and dependants of deceased class members. The British Columbia class

had not included those persons in the certification order.

61. In order to stay abreast of all relevant HCV medical information, Matthews.
L.émcr and I made it our business to confer regularly with Dr. Anderson and to read all germane
medical literature pertaining to HCV. Martthews, for example, attended the Canadian Association
for the Study of Liver ("CASL") Consensus Meeting in Toronto on March 5 and 6, 1999 and
prepared a memorandum dated March 10, 1999, a copy of which was sent to the Coalition under
cover of a letter dated March 11, 1999, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "W", dealing with
such items as a natural history of HCV, PCR testing, treatment of HCV and biopsy, all of which
were particularly relevant in our negotiations, Without doubt, Matthews and [ spent literally
hundreds of hours conferring with doctors and others andfcading medical literature to stay

abreast of the HCV disease process and treatment.

62. Attached as Exhibit "X" is a copy of my letter dated April 16, 1998 to Whitehall
establishing an agenda for our first negotiating session. Whitehall and I agreed at this time, and
subject to the concurrence of our respective negotiating committees, that we would fund joint
studies of mutual interest, such as disease modeliing of HCV, from the settlement funds. I
considered this an important issue for two reasons: first, joint funding of studies of mutual
interest cfeated an air of trust whi.ch would be embedded ln the negotiations from tﬁé outset and
would tend to overcome mutual suspicions about the other side; and second, joint funding

relieved the Coalition of a very substantial outlay of funds.
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63. The Coalition was concerned about the parallel sets of negotiations going on
between ourselves and the FPT Governments and counsel for the hemophiliacs and the FPT
Governments. Our primary concern was to ensure that our negotiations not be stalled or
undermined by their negotiations. We were both negotiating with the FTP Governments on what

they insisted was "up to $1.1 billion".

64. On April 23, 1998 we held our first negotiating meeting in Ouawa. Despite the
intention of having small negotiating committees on both sides, there were approximately 20
lawyers present. Our Negotiating Committee met both before and after this meeting. Attached
as Exhibit "Y" is a copy of a letter dated April 27, 1998 to me from Whitehall attaching the
Points of Record of our negotiating meeting prepared by Whitehall’s office. Although the
meeting was fairly produc:ive as a first meeting and three joint committce5 were established with
the FPT Govcrhmcms, namely, Disease Modeiling, Notification and Exigent Claims, I was very

concerned about the size and therefore the efficiency of such a large group of negotators.

65. At that meeting the FPT Governments provided us with a copy of the Laboratory
Centre for Disease Control ("LCDC") Remis Report of January, 1998 which estimated the 1986-
1990 HCV class size to be approximately 22,000. This figure had received a great deal of
notoriety and, so I was informed by Whitehall, was the basis on which the FPT Governments
made their offer. Inaddition, during that meeting Whitehall advised us of two things that he was
to repeat on many occasions, namely, the FPT Governments were proceeding on the basis that
liability was not admirtted and that they had strong and meritorious defenses, and that the

settlement offer was "up to $1.1 billion®. At that time, our position was not to engage in
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discussions about liability and not to accept that $1.1 was enough until we knew more about the

class size and HCV disease modelling.

66. A further negotiating meeting was set for Vancouver for May 6 or 7, 1998.
Attached as Exhibit "Z" is a copy of my letter dated April 28, 1998 to the Coalition setting forth

the major issues to be resolved by our side at that time.

67. A conference call of the Negotating Commirtee was held on April 30, 1998 and
each of the subcommittees were asked to prepare reports for the May, 1998 Vancouver meeting
and provide those reports to me. An example of one such report, the report of the Interest Group

subcommittee dated May 1, 1998, is attached as Exhibit "AA".

68. During this time the Coalition was particularly concerned with protecting our

clients’ interests vis-a-vis the CRC, which was not represented at the negotiations, especially

given that the transfer of its asséts to the Capadian Blood Services ( "CBS™) was being negotiated

separately between the CRC and the PT Governments. Attached as Exhibit "BB" is a copy of
my letter dated May 4, 1998 to Ken Arenson, the chair of the Search For Other Sources of Funds
subcommittee on this issue. Attached as Exhibit "CC" is a copy of a response to my letter, from
Ken Arenson, dated May 4, 1998. Attached as Exhibit "DD" is a copy of my letter to Prowse
dated May 12, 1998 in which [ made it plain that the Negotiating Committee was backing Mr.

Arenson.
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69. One major issue which initially divided us from the FPT Governments was
whether compensation would be approached on an individual basis. The FPT Governments
pressed for a fixed lump sum to cover all heads of damages with a maximum amount of damages
that any claimant could recover. We vigorously and successfully resisted this concept. Attached
as Exhibit "EE” is a copy of my letter dated May 4, 1998 to Whitehall on this among other

subjects.

70. Another issue which was both sensitive and time-consuming was dealing with
counsel for approximately 100 class members who had commenced actions across Canada
primarily to protect against the expiry of limitation penods Attached as Exhibit "FF" is a copy
of my letter to Doug Elliott and Dawna Ring dated May 1, 1998 dealing wim this issue. On May
4, 1998, I chaired a conference call with eight lawyers from Alberta who had approximately 40-
50 HCV cases. The purpose of the call was to dissuade them from proceeding with those actions

and, as far as 1 am aware, the strategy worked.

71. In preparation for the May 7, 1998 meeting I met with Whitehall and Prowse.

At that time, we continued to grapple with the issue Qf cohort size and the size of the
compensation fund. We now asserted the position that if the cohort size was 22,000, the $1.1
billion would be insufficient. We did not want any of the settlement money being withdrawn if
it were shown that the cohort size was likely to be substantially less than 22,000. My concerns
were heightened when I received Whitehall's letter of May 12, 1998, a copy of which is attached
as Exhibit "GG". In this lerter Whitehall says "1 made the point at the meeting that the

Government of Canada set aside the sum of $1.1 billion based on the epidemioiogical study, a
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copy of which you have. Clearly the ultimate settlement must reflect real numbers.” [ was

coming to the conclusion that the cohort size would be much smaller than 22,000 for two

principal reasons: first and foremost, the British Columbia cohort was no greater than 1.500 and
British Columbia constituted approximately [3 percent of the Canadian population with a
seropositivity rate twice the national average; second, our analysis of the January 1998 Remis
Report showed that it had serious flaws which caused the report to substantially overestimate the

cohort size.

72. The next negotiating meeting was held in Vancouver on May 6, 1998. [ arranged
for Dr. Anderson to speak to the assembled group which he did for approximately one hour on
the subject of the HCV disease process, treatmnent and impact. Attached as Exhibit "HH" is a

copy of the Points of Record prepared by me and disseminated to all interested parties.

73. Lavigne and I met on May 7, 1998 and mapped out the broad outlines of a
compensation scheme. Atftached as Exhibit "I" is a copy of my Icttc‘r dated May 8, 1998 to the

Damages Subcommittee on this subject.

74. ‘The cohort size continued to be critical and unresolved. It was proposed that in
the absence of rcliable epidemiological information, a national advertising campaign should be
undertaken to locate and determine the number of class members. Attached as Exhibit "JI” is
a copy of 'my letter to Lavigne da@ May 8, 1998 on thisAsubject. I asked him to éhair the joint
committee with the FPT Governments on this subject and to have a report prepared for the June

3, 1998 meeting.
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75. The assertion by the FPT Governments chat the ceiling of $1.1 billion could not
be exceeded yet it could be lowered was a difficult context within which to negotiate. The
Negotiating Committee had to determine whether the $1.1 billion was sufficient. If it was. our
negotiating strategy took us in the direction of thfashing out settlement terms, whereas if we
could not fit within the $1.1 billion envelope, we needed to find additional funds. Attached as
Exhibit "KK"is a copy of a fax dated May 15, 1998 to Strosberg and Lavigne attaching my memo

on this subject.

76. The possibility of a no-fault compensation scheme continued to pervade the
negotiations. For example, the Hepatitis C Society of Canada had been pushing this no-fault
initiative and had met with the FPT Ministers of Health in Ottawa on May 14, 1998. On May
19, 1998, Prowse wrote a letter to me, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “LL", in which
he noted "... the question of the extent of any no-fault basis for compensation and the method
of compensation arc the subject of our ongoing negotiations”. In my estimation, a no-fault
compensation scheme would be a disaster for the class members that we represented and it was
most important that we keep making progress towards scttlcmém. I had some private discussions
with Whitehall pertaining to a compensation package and reported this by letter to Strosberg and

Lavigne on May 21, 1998, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "MM".

717. Limitation periods were running against claimants in those provinces which did
not have tolling provisions in class proceedings legislation. Hence, a deal was brokered with the

FPT Governments that they would toll the limitation periods if we suspended our litigation
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demands for documents and examinations for discovery. Attached as Exhibit "NN" is a copy my

letter dated May 21, 1998 to the Coalition on this subject.

78. Throughout this time the Class Size, Disease Modelling and Damages

Subcommittee had been meeting frequently and, in particular, with Dr. Anderson, to acquire the

information necessary to develop a general damages matrix.

79. In order to achieve a breakthrough on the compensation package, Strosberg,
Lavigne and [ drafied a settlement proposal. Attached as Exhibit "OO"is a copy of my letter
dated May 28, 1998 to Whitehall and Prowse proposing settlement terms. Whitehall, Prowse
and I had a conference call pcrtéim'ng to this letter prior to the June 3, 1998 negotiating meeting
in Orawa. They indicated that it was a good starting place although there were several, if not

many, areas of difference.

80. On Jine 3, 1998 therc was a further negotiating meeting in Ottawa which
approximately 24 lawyers artended. The primary subject was the tabling of our draft settlement
proposal. Attached as Exhibit "PP" is a copy of my letter dated June 5, 1998 providing the
pariies with a copy of the Points of Record. A further negotiating meeting was scheduled for

June 30, 1998 in Ottawa.

81. In my view, negotiations were simply not proceeding swiftly enough and it was
important to get a smaller group including Strosberg to see if we could break some of the log

jams. Attached as Exhibit "QQ" is a copy of my letter dated June 4, 1998, to Whitehall, Prowse,
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Strosberg and Lavigne proposing a meeting of the five of us on June 12, 1998 at Strosberg’s

office in Toronto.

82. At this time [ was of the view that the biggest stumbling block to setlement was
the differing assessment of the size of the true risk of the S1.1 billion being exhausted. The FPT
Governments advised that our demands would not fit within the envelope. My own analysis was
to the contrary and I raised with Strosberg and Lavignc' the proposal that the claimants take on
the risk rather than reduce our demands. A long conference call was held on June 4, 1998 with

our Coalition in which I aruculated this idea.

83. Another major stumbling block was the lack of information we had about our
claimants. Although my firm had conducted interviews and we had a qucstidrmairc for each new
claimant to fill out, this information was largely anecdotal and did not provide the necessary
socio-economic information to properly build a detailed basis for a§sessing appropriate levels and
awards of compensation. We canvassed several possibilities, including a questionnaire to be sent
to infected persons across the country. A joint meeting of doctors took place on June 19, 1998
in Ottawa to try and iron out some of these problems. Although progress was made, there was

unsatisfactory medical and socio-economic data on which to base a compensation plan.

84. On June 13, 1998, Lavigne, Savonitto, Strosberg and I met with Whitehall and
Prowse in Toronto. This meeting was fruitful. We promised to provide a settlement proposal
to the FPT Governments before our next negotiating meeting in Ottawa on June 30, 1998 and

we raised the subject of the claimants taking on the risk. They said they would consider that but
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they asserted that the Governments would retain a politicai risk regardiess. We also ook the
position that the investment income on thé trust monies should be 'tax-free in the event that class
members took on the risk. They said that such revenue might be given tax-free treatment but the
FPT Governments were very concerned about the prospect of class counsel recovering up to one-
third of any §ctﬂemem amount including any tax savings and, therefore, class counsel fees would
have to be constrained. It came as no surprise me that the FPT Governments wanted to make
class counsel fees one of the negotiating issues. This was the first of several occasions on which
the FPT Governments insisted that a feature of any settlement must be a waiver of a percentage

based class counsel fee.

85. I felt that we could not rationally deliberate class counsel fees until a settlement

was concluded or nearly concluded. However, I did signal to Whitehall that I was prepared to

compromise on the issue of my entitlement to class counsel fees under my contingency fee

agreement. What did come as a surprise was the public manner in which Cyrus Reporter, a
spokesperson for the Federal Minister of Health, rai;ed the issue some considerable time later.
All parties had agreed to a "blackout” on all matters pertaining to the negotiations. Nevertheless,
Mr. Reporter advised the press that the Federal Minister of Health had instructed his negotiators

not to agree to a "contingency fee” for class counsel under any circumstances.

86. Strosberg, Lavigne and I worked out a settlement proposal to be provided to the

FPT Governments prior to our next negotiating meeting.
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87. On June 18. 1998 I had a lengthy telephone calil Qith Whitehall during which he
advised me that there was a new epidemiological study pertaining to class size and if the estimate
of cohort size was severely reduced. the $1.1 billion would be off the table. This confirmed the
concerns [ had for some time. The next day I learned through the press that the author of a new
LCDS study had announced that the cohort size was likely 6,000 to 12,000 and not 22,000. A
spokesman for the Federal Minister of Hcalﬁh was quoted as saying that the FPT negotiators were
never given a mandate to automatically offer the full $1.1 billion rather, "The offer was to spend
up to 3 1.1 billion. So the revised estimates will be an issue that the negotiators will have to take
into account.” Attached as Exhibit "RR" are copies of two newspaper reports dated June 19.
1998. Inaddition, the Hepatitis‘C Society of Canada and the Canadian Hemophilia Society were
advocating that given the much lower cohort size, all HCV sufferers should be compensated.
In my estimation, our job of keeping, let alone enhancing, the $1.1 billion for our class members
- was now much more difficult. We would have to cope with the notion that the original offer was
too generous and our claimants could not expect improved compensation because they were fewer
in number. We also had to deal with the possibility that the $1.1 billion would be made available

to all infected persons on a no-fault basis.

88. Strosberg, Lavigne and | employed the strategy that we "damn the torpedoes”and
I advised the FPT Governments that we would immediately go into litigation mode if they
attcxppted to reduce the $1.1 billion offer. [ conveyed this position to Whitéhall and Prowse.. The
FPT Governments agreed to keep negotiating the $1.1 billion dollar offer without conceding that

all of that sum would be necessary to settle our class actions.
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89. On June 22, 1998. I provided a copy of our proposal to Whitehall and Prowse
under the cover of a letter marked Exhibit "SS". We proposed two options, one with the
claimants taking the risk of insufficiency and the other with the FPT Governments accepting the

risk of insufficiency.

90. On June 22, 1998, [ had an extensive telephone conference with Prowse and
Whitehall during which we discussed the socio-economic profile of the cohort of class claimants
and we concluded that we needed more information before we coufd finalize a settfement
package. Initially we worked with both Federal LCDC and British Columbia Ministry of Health
personnel who recommended the British Columbia Centre for Excellence in HIV/AIDS ("CFE™)

conduct a survey. This task became very complex and extraordinarily time-consuming.

91. Given the frailty of the whole situation at this time, I felt it was very important
that we needed to have the hemophiliacs who were to share in the §1.1 billion negotiating at the
same table. I telephoned Tough and met with her approximately a week later in Ottawa and we
agreed to try to work together to resolve the conflicts between our respective cohorts. [reported
this to Whitehall and Prowse who strongly preferred a joint course of action between our

respective groups.

92. By that time [ had been informed by Whitehall that it was unlikely that they would
be able to respond to our settlemnent offer at the June 30, 1998 meeting in Ottawa. Attached as
Exhibit "TT" is a copy of my facsimile dated June 25, 1998, proposing an agenda for the

mesting.
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93, I continued to have discussions with Prowse and Whitehalt prior to the June 30
1998 meeting on issues such as economic losses including income losses. funire care costs and

death claims.

94, Atiached as Exhibit "UU"is a copy of my letter dated July 3, 1998 to the Coalition
of lawyers reporting on the June 30, 1998 negotiating meeting enclosing a copy of the Points of
Record prepared by me. It was my opinion that the counter proposal made by the FPT

Gavernments was unacceptable but progress was being made.

95. On July 9; 1998 I had an extensive telephone conference with Whitehall and
Prowse during which they proposed a new counter offer. The tenor of the discussion at times
berame quite acrimonious with both sides alleging hov@ disappointed they were with the position
of the other. It was during the course of this call that I became thoroughly convinced that the
only real chance we had of settling this case was if we could persuade the FPT Governments to
let the class members take the risk of insufficiency. Attached as Exhibit "VV" is a copy of a

letter dated July 13, 1998 to the Coalition.

96. On July 14, 1998 I had a conference call with Prowse and Matthews. Prowse
| informed me that the Ministers of Health were mecting on September 13, 1998 and this was a
critical date. He wanted to know whether we were coming together or whether the negotiations
were falling apart. [ indicated to him that I anticipated the response té the British Columbia
survey of the British Columbia class members would be generally benign and that this should

provide some comfort to the FPT Governments in compromising on several fronts.
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97. There were no formal negotiations during the fatter part of July and the first half

of August, 1998. However, during that time the following occurred:

(a)

(®)

(©)

HODMAGRFWISEVCC _DOM.CC_PO.SSOATA:84387.%

Matthews worked with Prowse, Whitehall and their clients 1o cﬁgam’zc the
socio-economic survey which was needed to advance negotiations. In
July, 1998 we obtained court approval to advertise the certification and to
communicate with class members for the purposes of the study;

the CRC filed for protection under the Companies Creditors Arrangement
Act (the "CCAA™) and Blair J. of the Ontario General Court granted an
order staying all litigation, including this case, against the CRC. This
development was very unhelpful and changed the complexion of our case.
It put at risk our ability to proceed with litigation against the CRC
including much-needed document production and examination for
discovery evidence, and, of céursc. our ability to execute against the
assets of the CRC;

CC&A and Lemer were appointed counsel to the BC class members in the
CCAA proceedings, Those procécdings revealed that the CRC would only
have approximately $75 million in assets against which all claimants could
execute and the claims of our class members, therefore, if successful,
would only be worth cents on the dollar against the CRC. I asked Lemer
1o take the role of protecting the interests of the BC class claimants who
would or could be affected by this process launched by the CRC while [
concentrated on the negotiations with the FPT Governments. CC&A

rendered a relatively small account to the Monitor and were paid fees of
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$19,770.50. The time spent for which we have been reimbursed has been

excluded from the work-in-progress pertaining to this class-action.

August - December, 1998

98. By mid-August, 1998 I had resumed conferring with Whitehall and Prowse on
matters pertaining to possible settlement. Unfortunately, the parties were still a considerable
distance apart and pressure was mounting. Attached as Exhibit "WW" is a copy of my letter
datgd August 21, 1998 to the Coalition. Whitehall advised that he had retained actuaries to cost
our latest offer and I retined Jack Levi ("Levi"), a highly respected Vancouver actuary with
Eckler Partners Ltd., to advise us. At the same time, Strosberg retained Murray Segal ("Segal”),

a highly respected Toronto actuary also with Eckler Parters Lid., to advise us.

99. | I conferred with Whitehall on August 21, 1998 and arranged an informal meeting
for October 15, 1998 between their accounting and actuarial advisors, KPMG, Levi, Segal and
a very small group of negotiators including me. I had been advised by both Whitehall and
Prowse that our demands would not fit within the $1.1 billion envelope and the FPT
Governments were not willing to accept any risk that the amount of compensation and benefits
paid to the class members would exceed $1.1 billion. The purpose of the meeting was to get the

accountants and actuaries together to see if we could find some common ground on this front.

100. On September 10, 1998, I met again with Whitehall. Although the meeting was
productive, we were still "miles apart” and [ again urged him to reconsider our proposal that the

FPT Governments guarantee the $1.1 billion and the class claimants would except the risk of
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insufficiency. Attached as Exhibit "XX" is a copy of my letter dated September 11, 1998, tg the

Coalition updating them on this and other matters.

101. On September 17, 1998 we held a conference call of the Coalition and brought
them up-to-date on my conversations with Whitehall and Prowse. As a result of that conference
call I wrote a letter dated September 18, 1998 to Whitehall with a copy.to Prowse, a copy of
which is artached as Exhibit "YY". At paragraph 5 of my letter I set a target date of mid-
October to determine whether there was any realistic prospect of settling the matter since, in my
opinion and in spite of a prodigious amount of work being done on both sides of the wble, 1 did

not see "any sefttlement light the end of the tunnel".

102, Whitehall continued to assert that the FPT Governments could successfully defend
the case with the policy defence. Accordingly, I had Matthews and Lemer both research this
issue taking into account the findings of the Krever Commission and the partial production of
documents by the Federal Crown. I concluded that the policy defence constituted a formidable
barrier against us, Matthews' memorandum of law was distributed to the Coalition. Partly
because of this conccrﬁ, we promoted the establishment of the Hepatitis C Emergency Program
about which I wrote in my letter of September 21, 1998 to Whitehall and Prowse, a copy of
which is marked Exhibit "ZZ". Our purpose was to start payments to class members out of the

$1.1 billion which we believed would improve our chances of an overall settiement.

103. During this time we were also concluding arrangements for the British Columbia

Survey to be conducted, including reviewing the survey questions drafted by CFE, negotiating
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a contract with CFE and the Blood Recipient Notification Program. [ arranged for weekly
conference calls to get an update from CFE on the progress of the survey. On some occasions

as many as 30 people participated in these weekly conference calls.

104. On October 15, 1998, the KPMG representatives met with Levi and Segal along
with a small group of lawyers from both sides of the table. The actuaries exchanged assumptions
underlying their respective costing analysis and it became clear why we were "miles apart". The
KPMG analysis was predicated on medical modelling that we did not believe reflected the profile
of our class. In the opinion of class counsel. we needed to find an independent group to provide
medical modelling both sides could live with. To this end, the Coalition agreed to the CASL
undertaking a study of the medical modelling with a budget of approximately $100,000 to come
from the settlement monies. Attached as Exhibit "AAA" is a copy of my letter dated October

20, 1998, on this subject along with a copy of my letter dated October 30, 1998,

105. I became more and more convinced as time went on that as long as the FPT
Govcrnméms remained on the risk, they would require such a large buffer between the
reasonable actuarial calculation of the claims and the ceiling of $1.1 billion, that settiement would
never be achieved. During our October 15, 1998 meeting, [ again urged the FPT Govcrnménts
to let the claimants assume the risk of the settlement funds being insufficient. After this meeting
I received a letter from W_hitchau' dated October 13, 1998, a copy of which is artached as Exhibit

"BBB", indicating that this idea of who would share the risk would be explored further.
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106. Attached is Exhibit "CCC" is a copy of my letter dated October 23, 1998 to the
Coalition. The purpose of this letter was to obtain a consensus of the Coalition that the claimancs
accept the risk of insufficiency. The letter also addressed the two areas where our views
diverged widely from those of the FPT Governments, namely, loss of income and support. and
care costs. Anached as Exhibit "DDD" is a copy of my letter dated October 27. 1998 1o
Strosberg proppsing that the class members take the risk of insufficiency. Strosberg and I spoke
about this matter on October 28, 1997 and agreed that we should vigorously assert a proposal

that the class members accept the risk of insufﬁciency‘.

107. A small meeting was arranged for Novermber 9, 1998 with Whitehall, Prowse,
Strosberg, Lavigne and myself in Ottawa to try and conclude ncgoﬁations; In preparation for this
meeting and a new settlement proposal, Matthews and 1 spent many hours with Anderson and
Levi on medical and acruarial issues pertaining to the modelling and costing of our proposal. In
addition, commencing in late October, 1998 we began receiving preliminary data from the BC
Survey which confirmed, by and large, that health and socio-economic circumstances of our class

members were relatively benign.

108. On November 3, 1998 I had an extensive meeting with Tough who was in
Vancouver, The purpose of the rheeting was to determine whether we could bring the two
groups together 10 strike 2 deal. During the course of that meeting, we telephoned Whitehall to
discuss harmonizing our negotiations. After this, the transfused classes and the hemophilia

classes worked together to conclude negotiations.

41-
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109. Attached as Exhibit "EEE" is a copy of a letter from Whitehall dated November
2, 1998, confirming his instructions to pursue negotiations based on the class members taking

the risk of any insufficiency. We finally achieved the desired result on this issue.

110. On November 8, 1998. Matthews and I met with Strosberg, Lavigne and Savonitto
in Ottawa. We refined our approach and compromised on a few of our demands in preparation

for our meeting with Whitehall and Prowse the next day which proved fruitful.

111. Attached as Exhibit "FFF" is a copy of my letter dated November 16, 1998,
serving a settlement proposal based on the class members accepting the risk of insufficiency.
Attached as Exhibit "GGG" is a copy of a rc;sponsc from Whitehall dated November 18, 1998.
The FPT Governments still had very serious concerns with our proposal. Strosberg, Lavigne,
Savonitto, Matthews and I met again with Whitehall and Prowse on November 19, 1998 and we
were able to resolve many of our differences. Attached as Exhibit "HHH" is a copy of my letter
dated November 20, 1998 to Whitehall and Prowse enclosing a further offer stemming from our
negotiating mecting on November 19, 1998. By the end of November, Tough had ironed out
most of the differences pertaining to the hemophiliac group and she was "in sync” with our latest
proposal. After this date, the negotiations with the FPT Governments were conducted by the
solici-tors of record in the class actions, namely, myself, Strosberg, Lavigne, Savonitto and

Tough (the "Class Counsel”).

112. On December 2, 1998 Class Counsel met with Whitehall and Prowse and ironed

out several further differences. On December 2, 1998 Strosberg wrote to Whitehall and Prowse
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enclosing the draft settlement agreement which we felt reflected an agreement on all major issues

although a few minor issues needed to be addressed and ironed out.

113. Attached as Exhibit "III" is a letter from Whitehall datéd December 8, 1998
which notes in the penultimate paragraph that he enclosed a further draft proposal with
substantive changes from our proposal. On December 9, 1998, a further conference call was
held with Class Counsel to devise further litigation strateéies to overcome the differences. It was
agreed that we needed an immediate face-to-face meeting to resolve these differences. Auached
as Exhibit "JJI" is a copy of my letter dated Dgccmbcr 9, 1998 identifying the major and minor
issues which stili divided the parties. One of these issues was a demand by Ontario and Quebec
for a full release of the CRC which, in the opinion of Class Counsel, was a deal breaker without

substantiz] additional compensation being offered for such a release.

114. Further face-to-face discussions were held with the FPT Governments and matters
were resolved incluaing the addition of $18 million being added to the settlement funds for a
release of the CRC. A Framework Agreement came into being on December 18, 1998. As part
of the negotiated Framework Agreement, the FPT Governments insisted on a provision that
before the FPT Governments would seek the necessary approvals by their respective Treasury
Boards, class counsel had to agree not 1o seek class counsel fees based on a percentage of the

negotiated settlement amount.
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January 1999 - June 1999
115. Many issues needed to be addressed in order 1o progress from the Framework
Agreement to a final agreement which could receive court approval, including:
(a) drafting a formal agreement;
(b) advertising the proposed settlement;
{c) having the agreement receive Treasury Board approval across Canada and
be signed by all parties;
(d) conferring with parties who haﬁ an interest including the Public Trustees
or their equivalents; and

(e) preparing for the Court approval applications.

Drafting the Agreement
116. Drafting an agreement from the Framework Agreement gave rise to a new set of

negotiations. In retrospect, there was as much work left to do as we had already done.

117. Strosberg’s firm drew the first drafts which was revised during days of meeting

between myéelf, Matthews, Lavigne, Savonitto, Tough, Strosberg, Peterson and Speight.

118. The FPT Governments retained McCarthy Tetrault to act for them on the drafiing
of the final agreement. These negotiations involved the following:

(@) | many days of mccting§ between McCarthy Tc&ault commercial iawycfs,

including tax lawyers and others, and a drafting subcommirtee of the

Coalition and representatives of the FPT Governments. Marthews
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participated in each of these meetings on behalf of the class members of

this case;
(b) negotiating meetings between the Class Counsel, the FPT Governments
| and McCarthy Tetrault to resolve disputes whiéh arose; and
{c) consultations with Dr. Anderson, Dr. Morris Sherman. Levi and Segal
pertaining to the details of the compensation provisions.
119. Although the framework agreement was initialled in December, 1998, several

issues arose during the drafting of the formal agreement, some of which had the potential to

(a)

. crater the deal. The most significant of those were as follows:

Interest Rates. In the Framework Agreement the parties had agreed to a
rate of interest equivalent to the long-term Government of Canada Bonds.
In March of 1999 Whitehall advised me that this issue had to be revisited.
Attached as Exhibit "KKK"is a letter dated March 31, 1999 from
Whitehall 10 me, the pennltimate paragraph of which indicated that the
FPT Governments were only willing to pay interest at the Treasury Bill
rate. Attached as Exhibit "LLL" is a copy of a letter dated May 5, 1999
from Strosberg to Whitehall and Prowse in which Mr. Strosberg conveyed
the position of the Class Counsel that the position of the FPT Governments
on interest ratc was "utterly unacceptable”. The Federal Government
pfovided its response in Q letter dated May 6 1999, a copy of which is ‘
marked Exhibit "MMM". This issue was resolved in a favourable fashion

1o the class members when the Federal Governments agreed to pay their
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8/11 upfront so that this portion of the Trust Fund could be invested in
Real Rate of Return Bonds which would yield an attractive imérest rate:

Release Language. The negotiations surtrounding the release language
wasvprotracted and difficult because the FPT Governments originally
demanded exceedingly broad release language. Class Counsel were quite
simply not prepared to have the clients sign what was, in effect, a general
release of all claims against the FPT Governments, and Canadian doctors
and hospitals. This issue required lengthy negotiations with the FPT
Governments and among the members of the Class Counsel because of
differences between provincial comparative fault legislation and
jurisprudence. A compromise was finally reached and this issue was
favourably resolved without the claimants being required to sign a general
form of release; and

The Definition of Blood. In June of 1999 the FPT Governments advised
that they wanted the definition of Blood exéanded to include the list of
excluded products which is appended to the certification order. This
expanded definition would have increased the size of the class i)y an
unknown and unascertainable factor because of the very common usage
of those excluded products and the difficulty or impossibility of

determining whether they can or have transmitted HCV to Canadians. The

FPT Governments were adamant that they be included. The Class Counsel

was adamant that they not be included and that this would be a "deal
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breaker” if the FPT Governments persisted. The issue was favourably

resolved when the FPT Governments dropped this demand.

120. ~ One of the last issues raised at the time the Settlement Agreémem was being
finalized was class counsel’s request to the FPT Governments to rebate taxes collected on class
counsel fees which would have served to reduce the amount of fees being sought by class
counsel. The FPT Governments declined. Attached as Exhibit "NNN" is a copy of a letter dated

June 10, 1999, from Whitehall to me on this issue.

121. The extraordinarily long and arduous process of hammering out a final and formal
agreement ("Settlement Agreement”) was conciuded, for all intents and purposes, at a final
negotiating meeting in Vancouver in early June, 1999 and thereafter the Settlement Agreement
received Treasury Board approval and was executed by the parties. Class Counsel laid the final

settiement agreement before all three Courts on or about June 15, 1999,

Advertising the Pro t

122. As part of the approval process, notification of the proposed settiement and the
procedure for objecting to it had to be commuﬁicatcd to class members. Because of the nation
wide class and the complicated nature of the settlement, Class Counsel retained a public relations
firm to assist in effectively conveying the message. This included drafting the notice, drafting
newspaper advcrtiscrﬁcnts, drafting a plain l@gmge brochure and séning up websites. Thé
language of these documents was the subject of further negotiation between Class Counsel and

the FPT Govemments.
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lection of ¢ dministrator_and start-up costs of th inistrator
123. Class Counsel were of the view that an administrator had to be retained as soon
as the Settlement Agreement was in final form so that there would be uniformity of response to
hundreds if not thousands of inquiries and work could get started to pave the way to pay claims
as soon as court approval was obtained. Prior to commissioning the administrator to start work
and incur start-up costs, [ had conversations with Prowse and Whitehal! which led me to believe
that the FPT Governments would agree to pay the "start-up” costs of the proposed administrator
prior to court approval of the agreement and court approval of the appointment of the

administrator.

124. I participated heavily in the selection process for an administrator to be .

recommended to the courts and the negotiations leading up to the terms of appointment of the
administrator (Schedule 3 of the October 28, 1999 order of this Court approving the settlement,
the "Order"). Both the selection process and negotiating the terms of appointment were

complicated and time-consuming.

125. Once selected, and under instruction by Class Counsel, the proposed administrator
rented space, hired employees, acquired a 1-800 number, set up a \x;cbsite. etc. According to
the evidence of Mark Rambin, the manager of the proposed administrator, given in evidence
. before Mr. Justice Winkler, the call centre fielded 2,800 telephone calls of which 400 were in
French, received 20,000 hits on the WebSite and distributed 2500 brochures in English and

French. These start-up costs mounted very quickly and when we raised this issue with the FPT
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Governments in mid-July, 1999, we were told that the FPT Governments were not prepared to

pay for the start-up costs.

126. ‘ I raised this issue again with Whitehall and Prowse in August, 1999 and was
initially advised that the FPT Governments were simply not prepared to commit to the start-up
costs. Class Counsel were not prepared to instruct the proposed Administrator to "down tools"
and the start-up costs continued to mount. One of the solutions I proposed to Class Counsel was
that Class- Counsel ourselves‘ borrow the necessary money to pay the start-up costs of the
proposed administrator because we had commined to thousands of class members that there

would be no undue delay in making payment claims,

127. Atiached as Exhibit "O0OQ" is a copy of my letter to Whitehall dated August 24,

1999, which notes, among other things, that the start-up costs for the administrator would soon

reach $1,000,000. On September 1, 1999 Whitehall called me to advise the issue had been

discussed with the Provincial Governments but had still not been resolved. Finally, Whitehall
called me to advise that a partial solution was at hand, namely, that the Federal Government
would agree to pay the their share of start-up costs but only to a cap of 8/11 of $1.2 million.
Attached as Exhibit "PPP" is a copy of a letter dated September 8, 1999 from Whitehall to me
setting forth this partial solution. Although Class Counsel agreed with this partial solution, Class

Counsel remain cxposcd for 3/11 of the start-up fees up to $1.2 million and for all of the

administrators fees and disbursements in excess of $1.2 million unless and until the appointment

of the Administrator is approved by all three Courts. As of the date of affirming this affidavit,

the Quebec court has still not ruled on the appointment of the Administrator. Auached as Exhibit
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"QQQ" is a copy of a letter dated November 19, 1999 from the administrator to me showing that

their total start-up costs to date amount to $836,722.

128. In addition, [ also participated in the selection of and negotiation of the terms of
appointment of the Trustee (Schedule 4 of the Order), the deliberations leading up to Investment
Guiﬁclincs (Schedule 5 of the Order), the terms of appointment of the Investment Manager
(Schedule 6 of the Order) and the terms of appointment of the Investment Consultant (Schedule

7 of the Order).

e lication for Court roy
129. Throughout the negotiations and the ﬁnaliéation of the Agreement, Matthews and
I were also working with CASL, Levi, Dr. Andersonand CFE. As noted above, CASL prepared
the medical model, Dr. Anderson was providing us with advice as to the disease history and
treatment, and CFE conducted the British Columbia Survey pertaining to the socio-economic and
overall health status o:f, the British Columbia class members. Levi had been providing us with
actuarial assistance during the negotiations but his report as to the soundness of the Fund could
not be written before the work was done on the foremost assumptions of cohort size, medical
modelling and the socio-economic profile of the class cohort. Matthews and I spent an enormous

amount of time with these individuals and groups discussing their work, providing direction as

to the areas most pertinent to the negotiations, and urging them to complete their tasks as quickly

as possible. After the work was complete, further time was spent digesting the results and
discussing them with the authors so that it could be understood by ourselves and Levi and

incorporated in his report. In particular, Matthews spent many hours reviewing the CASL report
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which is a very technical and dense document, and coordinating conference calls between Levi

and Murray Krahn, the primary author of the CASL Report.

130. In addition( to the main assumptions discussed above, there were many other
assumptions which had to be addressed and a factual basis researched for Levi. Matthews and
Lemer undertook most of this work with assistance from members of the Coalition. Those areas
which required research include:
(a) costs of the treatment covered by the Agreement including what is paid for
by provincial pharmacare and drug plans;
(b) costs of tracebacks and negotiations with the CBS; and

© loss of services and family configurations.

131. A great deal of work was necessary to prepare the material for court approval.
Fourteen different affidavits were prepared including very extensive affidavits of Matthews, Dr.

Anderson and Lemer.

132. A very considerable amount of time was spent preparing for the approval heariné
including preparing written submissions. Because of the inextricably linked nature of the
approval hearings in the three jurisdictions, I asked Lemer to attend at the Ontario hearing and
to report to me on a daily basis. I retained a senior counsel in Montreal, Gordon Kugler, to

attend the Quebéc hearing and report to me on a daily basis.
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133. Class Counsel determined that the orders of the Courts would be critical to the
‘overall functioning and implementation of the sentlement. Strosberg's office prepared a draft
order and as it was 10 be the basis for the British Columbia order, Matthews and | spent a great
deal of time reviev}ing and revising the proposed Ontario order. This process also included
representatives of the FPT Governments, parties who obtained standing in Ontario and the CRC,
the third party hospital and doctors and the Public Trustee in British Columbia. The Ontario
proposed order went through many drafts prior to the approval hearing on the August 18, 1999,
Once @t order was in near final form, I circulated a similar but not identical British Columbia

order which also went through several iterations before the approval hearing.

134, Another area that consumed an enormous amount of time was and is drafting

protocols. As an example, Matthews travelled to Toronto and Ottawa on several occasions to

meet with Class Counsel and the administrator on this subject. Attached as Exhibit "RRR"is a

copy of a preliminary list of protocols that are required in order to implement the compensation
o

plans. The most recent meeting Matthews attended on this subject was in Ottawa on November

7,8, and 9,1999.

Post Approval Hearing Issues

135. As a result of exchanges between Class Counsel and Mr. Justice Winkler during
the course of thé approval hearings, it became clear that Mr. Justice Winkler was not satisfied
that claims by persons who opt out of the settlement should be paid out of the sertlement funds,
at least not in excess of the amount these persons would have been entitled to had they remained

members of the class. Hence, Class Counsel conferred and hit upon the idea of finding an
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insurer who would take on this risk for a premium equal to the amount that our actuaries had
assumed would be needed to protect against this risk, namely, $10 million. Although this
initiative was spearheaded by Tough and Strosberg, I was kept closely advised and brought into

the discussions by telephone conference.

136. Once the reasons for judgment of Mr. Justice Winkler were handed down and with
which Mr. Justice Smith concurred, a new round of arduous negotiations ensued with the FPT
Governments on the "modifications” referred to by these two judges. These negotiations

included a face-to-face meeting in Vancouver with all parties present.

137. On the issue of handling opt out claims, 1 informed all parties and the insurers
of the British Columbia opt out experience. Two insurers were willing to accept the risk of
insuring all opt out claims based, in part, on this experience. Attached as Exhibit "SSS” is a
copy of my letter dated September 2, 1999, to Tough dealing with our opt out experience in
British Columbia. Anached as Exhibit "TTT" is a copy of my mcxﬁorandum dated October 1,
1999 on the subject of opt outs. Attached as Exhibit "UUU” are copies of my letters dated
October 15, 1999 and October 18, 1999, to Whitehall which formed the basis of our agrecment

on this issue.

138. On the issue of thalassernia sufferers being included, attached as Exhibit "VVV”
are copies of two memoranda dated September 23, 1999 to all parties indicating the reasons why,

in my opinion, they were already included in the Plans.
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139, The third issue pertained to the “surplus” which was a highly political issue.
Strosberg was strongly of the view that the FPT Governments would -ventually accept the
modification proposed by Mr. Justice Winkler and Mr. Justice Smith and I deferred to

Strosberg's political judgment which proved to be correct.

140, Once the issues pertaining to the modifications had been addressed, the Ontario
draft order needed to be finalized. Again, this was very time consuming and included a day long
session which [ attended in Toronto before Mr. Justice Winkler-and approximately 30 lawyers.
The order went through many drafts before it was finalized on November 10, 1999. Attached
as Exhibit "WWW?" is a copy of my facsimile to Cla:ss Counsel dated November 10, 1999,
proposing virtually the last wording change. Although the British Columbia Order was based

on the Ontario order, it also went through many drafts and was the subject of a one-half day

hearing before this court.

141. Matthews flew to Prince George to interview Endean so as to ensure that we were
both comfortable with her acting as the representative plaintiff. After rcce;iving the benefit of
independent legal advice and advice from friends and family, so I am informed, she agreed to
act as representative plaintiff and she signed the fee agreement which is marked Exhibit "B”.
From that time forwz;rd, Matthews and I have communicated very frequently with Endean and
have often sought thc benefit of her opinion. on a myriad of issues déaling with this action. thn

appropriate we have sought and received instructions from her.
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Communications with Class Members

142. CC&A has reported regularly 1o class members since the inception of the action.
primarily by way of reporting lette_rs sent out approximately at 6 month intervals. CC&A also
has a dedicated toll free telephone number and a website. [t would nof be an exaggefation 1o say
that lawyers and staff at CC&A have met in person with hundreds of class members and potential

class members and have received thousands of telephone calls during the course of this action.

Press Relations
143. HCV matters in general, and this [itigation and settiement in particular, have

atracted a great deal of public atention. [ have fielded literally hundreds of calls from the press
since the time this matter was initiated in the spring of 1996. I have been on several radio
programs and have been interviewed on television several times. 1 considered relations with the
press to be important because:

@) the press was an all)'/ at the outset in generating a better understanding of
the needs and aspirations of the class members for recognition and fair and
adequate compensation for their plight;

() many of the interest groups, some of whom had an interest that conflicted
with the interests of the class members, used the press frequently and
effectively;

(©) many class members followed the press carefully and if misinformation
was publishcd they became agitated and confused and this had to be put

right; and

:ODMAGRPWISE\CT _DOM.CC_PO.SSDATA:64387.1 -55-



(d) the highly politically charged nature of the issue made it particularly press

worthy and there was virtually no escaping the press.
One of the issues that received a great deal of press attention was the fees sought by Class
Counsel. Although some comnen@tors and a spokesperson for the Minister of Health have
described the class counsel fees sought as being "excessive”, when I publicly defended class
counsel fees, the public reception I received was quite different. Attached as Exhibit "XXX"
is a letter dated August 9, 1999 to Class Counsel attaching a transcript of a radio interview with

Peter Warren of radio station CKNW.

The Fee Agreement and Individual Fees

144, I asked new class members who approached my firm to sign an idehdcal fee
-agreement to that which was signed by Endean. I continued to do this until the FPT Governments
made their initial offer of $1.1 billion by which time approximately 240 class members had
signed feec agreements, Some class members who registered with my firm had not signed fee
agreements during this period of time. Nevertheless, all class members who registered with my

firm were treated alike.

145. After the formal settlement agreement had been conciuded in mid June, 1999, 1
advised all class members in writing that Class Counsel had agreed to forego a claim for a
percentage of the settlement amount and agreed to seck a lump sum payment for Class Counsel

fees 10 be approved by the courts in each of Quebec, Ontario and British Columbia.
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146. At the same time { advised all British Columbia class members that we were
striving to make the administration of the compensation plan as simple and as user-friendly as
possible with a view to limiting the need for individual HCV claimants to retain lawyers to assist
them in applying for compensation. I‘have stressed this point in my meetings with groups of
class members, and in my discussions with interests groups, the Public Trustee and the press.
I view this as one of the duties owed by Class Counsel to the class membership as a whole, Now
that I have been appointed as a member of the Joint Committee, I believe that this particulaf duty
is heightened. To this end, [ have decided that CC&A should not and will not act for any

individual HCV claimant.

147. As part of the commitment to limit the need for individual class members to
require legal services kto assist them in their individual claims, Class Counsel have taken the
follow.ing steps:
(a) developed claims forms, procedures and protocols which are as clear and
simple and as possible;
() negotiated a specific requirement that the administrator assist claimants in
the completion of claims forms and that the administrator attempt 10
resolve any disputes with claimants. This mandate is set forth in Section
5.02 (g) of the Settlement Agreement;
(©) as part of the negotiated terms of appointment of the administrator, Class
Counsel required &e administrator to dedicatc personnel to assist class

members or claimants with their inquiries with respect to their claims and
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appeals. This is set forth in paragraph 13(d) of the Terms of Appointment
of administrator: and |

(d) negotiated terms which require the administrator to respond to all
inquiries, written or oral, from class mémbcrs within thirty days of such
inquiry and, unless exceptional circumstances dictate otherwise, the
adxﬁinistrator must make a decision on the claims and advise the claimant
of the decision no later than thirty days after the receipt of all relevant
information. These requirements are set forth in paragraphs 13 (g) and 13

(h) of the Terms of Appointment of Administrator.

Waiver of g Egggghtggg Fee on the Settlement Amount
148. Under my fee agreement, Lemer and CC&A were entitled to charge up to one-

third of the settlement amount attributed to the British Columbia class action. " Quebec class
counsel also had a percentage contingency fee agreement with their representative plaintiff. Class
Counsel in both the Framework Agreement and the Settlement Agreement have waived their
rights to seek recovery of class counsel fees based on a percentage of the settlement amount.
Without doubt, in my opinion, the compromisé by class counsel of their right to claim class
counsel fees on the basis of percentage of any settlement or judgment, which in my case
amounted to up to one-third, was a significant concession which assisted the parties in coming

o an agreement.
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14G. Class Counsel added enormous value to the initial settlement offer of $1.1 billion

as follows:

(@)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

0

(g)

an additional sum of $18 million plus interest on this sum from April |,
1998, pertaining to a release of the CRC;

an additional sum of approximately $80 million pertaining to interest on
the $1.1 billion from April 1, 1998 to September 30, 1999,

an additional sum of approximately- $357 million which is the present
value of the tax-free accurnulation of interest on the settlement funds:;
an additional sum of approximately $104 million attributable to the present
value of the difference berween the Treasury Bill rate of interest and the
Real Rate of Return Bond rate of interest on the Federal Government’s
upfront payment of 8/11 of the Contribution Amount;

the receipt of benefits, with one exception, by a class member will not
affect the quantity, natre or duration of any social benefits or social
assistance benefits payable to class member (the value of this
enhancement is incapable of calculation);

all paymients are indexed annually according to the consumer price index;
and

no FPT Government nor any Department of an FPT Government may
recover any s‘ubrogatcd interest whicﬁ in most jurisdictions is éustomarily

pursued (the value of this enhancement is incapable of calculation).
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At paragraph 90 of his reasons. Mr. Justice Winkler found the value of the settlement to be

$1,564,000,000 without the benefit of all of the arguments noted above.

Time and Disbursements

150, To approximateily November 20, 1999, CC&A has amassed 52.5957791 in work
in progress in this matter not including fees of $19,770 billed t0 and paid by the Monitor of the
CRC. Nor does this work in progress include approximately $30,000 recorded by CC&A on
individual claimant files. [ will make the dockets available upon reasonable request and upon
reasonable underakings of confidentiality. As at the date of speaking to this application. I will
tender to the Court and the parties the most current status of work in progress amassed by

CC&A.

151. Much of the time spent by Martthews and me was of a critical nature in either
‘preparing for or attending at numerous court hearings or logged in hard fought negotiations on

behalf of all ransfused class members across Canada.

152. A history of the disbursements carried by CC&A is attached as Exhibit "YYY".
Many of these disbursements have been carried for years. Many but not all of the negotiating
expenses incurred by CC&A have been paid but often they have been carried by CC&A for six
months. As at the date of speaking to this application, I will tender to the Court and the parties

the most current information pertaining to disbursements.
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153. At the outset of this litigation our line of credit at CC&A was $200,000. As at the
end of November, 1999 and without any addition of Jawyers to the firm, our line of credit is now
at $750.000. In my estimation, most of this increase in our line of credit is artributable to this
case. Matthews and I have spent between 50-100% of our time on this matter since it
commenced. Kim Graham, the senior legal assistant of the file, has spent between 75% and
100% of her time on the file since it commenced. Caleen Ross, a legal assistant hired in
January, 1999 1o assist with the workload pertaining to the class members who contacted our

firm, spent over 90% of her time on this file until September, 1999,

154. The financial sufficiency of the Trust Fund was critical in obtaining approval to
the Settlement Agreement. In my view, it was necessary for class counsel to make a reasonable
and balanced estimate of all counsel fees ($52.5 million) and taxes so as A0 ensure that the
sufficiency of the Trust Fund would not be imperiled and the whole Settlement Agreement put
in jeopardy. Without passing judgment on class counsel fees, Mr. Justice Winkler, with whom
Mr. Justice Smith speciﬁcally agreed on this issue, said in paragraph 129 of his reasons, "I am
satisfied based on the Eckler report that the fund is sufficient, within acceptable tolerances to

provide the benefits stipulated.”

Risks Undertaken
155. There were a series of risks confronting class counsel in this marter. The firstarea

of risk was whether the action was worth taking and on what basis. The second area of risk was
whether the class-action would be certified. The third area of risk was whether the parties would

be able to consummate a settiement. The last area of risk was whether the courts would approve
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any settlement. As time passed, class counsel built up an enormous amount of time and a very
significant amount of disbursements, all of which was at risk until the {ast court approved the
Settlement Agreement without any material change. Had this risk materialized, class counsel
would have wasted nearly two years of time and effort and trial preparation wouid have been set
back by the same amount of time. All parties were well aware of the possibility of this risk
materializing. Attachéd as Exhibit "ZZZ" is a copy of my letter dated March 29, 1999, in which
I noted that if the settlement was not approved, "all bets are off” and the FPT Governments
would be asserting all affirmative defenses including limitation period defenses. Had any of
these risks come to pass, class counsel were painfully aware that our resources would have been
depleted and that we would not be in as strong a position to prosecute the trial of the common
issues as we were before the negotiations began. Mr. Justice Winkler, with whom this Court
agreed, characterized the litigation risks of continuing tb trial, at paragraphs 92 and 94 of his

reasons, as "substantial,” "significant” and "very real”.

unsej’ i in_This Matt
156. It is difficult for me to express the enormous responsibility in acting as counsel
in a matter of this magnitude and dimension. As far as I am aware, the amount of money at issue
was and is the largest amount in the history of Canada pertaining to personal injury or death
claims. As far as I am aware, the number of claimants is greater than any other personal injury
or death claims tort action in the history of Canada. Nor is it possible to overstate the importance
of this action to the welfare of the thousands of class members who will panibipatc. The
negotiations were by far the most complicated and the most stressful ever undertaken by me. On

our side of the table the laws were guite different in the three jurisdictions and so were the
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approaches by various class counsel from time to time. On the other side of the table, we had

13 Governments and the CRC to deal with and these interests were very disparate at times.

157. Itis my opinion that there was virtually no room for error in judgment in this case
and absolutely no room for a lack of resolve. Had the negotiations failed or had the underlying
action been lost due to my negligence, I did not have, and as far as I know no lawyer in Canada

could have, sufficient professional liability insurance to pay but a fraction of the loss.

158. As far as the certification of the British Columbia class action is concerned, it is
my opinion that it was very unlikely that any HCV infected person across Canada would have

recovered "a dime" in litigation, had we failed to certify the British Columbia class action.

159. During the last two years approximately, Matthews and I have rumed away lhek

vast majority of prospective clients because of the burden of the responsibility and the time

required by this matter.

he Fi du
160. The final product that was successfully negotiated can only be described as unique
in Canadian litigation history. Mr. Justice Winkler, at paragraph 87 of his reasons, and with
which this court agreed, described the settlement as "imaginative” and “forward-looking". It had
to reflect the disease process that was transitory yet had potential long-term devastating
consequences. [t had to treat fairly class members who ranged from being entirely-asymptomatic

to those who were totally incapacitated. And it had to be pan-Canadian. This aspect permitied
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class counsel to negotiate on a "most favoured nations" basis so that, for example, British
Columbia class members have substantially greater recovery rights in several areas under the
Settlement Agreement than they would have in a court of law in this jurisdiction. Finally, and
again quoting Mr. Justice Winkler at paragraph 88 of his reasons, "the negotiations achieved the
maximum total funding that could be obtained short of trial.”

AFFIRMED BEFORE ME at the City of )

Vancouver, in the Provinqg of )
British Columbia, this day

of November, 1999. )
) 1.1.\ZAMP, Q.C.
)
)
/ )
‘ )
A Sofffpissiones-fortaking Affidavits
for the Province of British Columbia
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CamMP CHURCH & ASSOCIATES

BARRISTERS
N ‘ 4th Floor, Randall Building
J.J. Camp, Q.C. 555 West Georgia Street
David P. Church* Vancouver, B.C.

Canada V6B 125

This s Exhibit * H’ ‘referrcdto inths

Joe Fiorante®

o Andrew ]. Pearson
Sharon D. Matthews
Ian G. Schildt

Telephone: (604) 689.7555

Facsimile: {(604) 689.7554

FILE REF: 96015/001

April 18, 1996

o VIA FAX NO. 682-1283
. Singleton Urquhart Scott
Barristers & Solicitors
1200 - 1125 Howe Street
Vancouver, BC

Sy

v V6Z 2K8
- Attention: David Butcher
Dear Sirs:
(e
- Re: Hepatitis C Class Action Litigation
- I have conferred with Bruce Lemer on the subject of jointly participating
o in this litigation with you and your firm. I thought it best to record my thoughts in
writing.
"
e I wish to first address the subject of disbursements. 1 understand that you
are hopeful that the Hepatitis C victims can generate sufficient capital to cover off
- disbursements. [ see this as being problematic in several different respects, not the least
of which is keeping track of contributions on a case-by-case basis, properly allocating and
‘ attributing expenses between various sub-classes and refunding contributions where no
- value has been received. Bruce Lemer and 1 both hold the view that the disbursements
" ~ should be funded by the law firms. This not only simplifies matters but ensures thal all
; clients receive the same treatment regardless of financial resources possessed by that
- client. Few Hepatitis C victims can afford to raise the necessary funds to properly fund
s the class action. [Furthermore, the law pertaining to contingency fees holds that a fee is
more justifiable when the law firm has expended its own financial resources to fund the
e litigation.
. 4
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This will be complex and complicated litigation. Even the class certification
is problematic. As I am sure you know, a class certification application on behalf of
persons who received HIV-infected blood was denied in Ontario. Furthermore, the
proposed Hepatitis C class action in Ontario is stalled to say the least.

With respect to liability, it is my opinion that there is no one better suited
to advance this case than Bruce Lemer. As you know, he has amassed very extensive
experience in the tainted blood field and has already resolved many blood related lawsuits
on behalf of HIV clients. For my part, as [ indicated, approximately three-quarters of
my practice is dedicated to product liability cases on behalf of plaintiffs.

With respect to you and your firm, I register a modest concern about the
lack of experience in this area. I do wish to record my utmost respect for the reputation
enjoyed by your firm in the fields of endeavour where it has expertise. On more than
one occasion I have referred clients to your firtn because of that expertise and those
clients have been very satisfied. On the other hand, there may be a firm culture problem
with respect to this litigation. Your firm is simply not noted for having an extensive
plaintiffs’ practice based on contingency fee arrangements in product liability cases.
Rather, your firm has an excellent reputation generally on the defence side, including
subrogated actions on behalf of insurers. The primary purpose for registering this
concern is that any firm that takes on a commitment of this nature must expect to incur
very substantial disbursements and very substantial inventory of time for a very long
period of time.

Bruce Lemer provided you with a list of the 19 insurance companies who
insured the Red Cross and other potential defendants at various times up to 1986. 1
assume you have performed a conflicts check for all of these insurers and any others who
might have insured the Red Cross and other potential defendants from the 1970s to 1990
and you have satisfied yourself that you and your firm have no conflict of interest.

Having conferred with all of the counsel on the breast implant litigation, it
is our best guess that the disbursements associated with this litigation, including the trial
on liability in the class action case, will ultimately exceed $500,000. Secondly, 1 would
expect the firms who undertake this matter to incur a minimum of $500,000 of otherwise
billable time which must be held in inventory. Third, 1 personally do not expect to have
this litigation resolved for several if not many years.

You and your firm bring two substantial benefits "to the table" 1o use the
vernacular. First and foremost, you have many Hepaiitis C clients who have already
retained you to commence action on their behalf. A percentage of these clients are likely
to have viable actions in the relatively short window of time in which the blood
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authorities may have exposure to liability. Secondly, I am sure that your Hepatitis C
clientele reposes confidence in you to ensure that their cases are properly handled and that
they will want you to monitor the progress of the class action litigation.

These factors ought to be fairly compensated and it is our proposal that you
get a substantial referra] fee for any clients that form part of the ultimate class.

One final note. I consider that Bruce Lemer and I have an effective team
to properly try this class action case. As you know, my firm had deployed a considerable
amount of our legal and paralegal resources 1o asbestos litigation which is drawing 10 a
close. Hence, the timing is right to redeploy these resources. I anticipate that it will take
a minimum of one junior lawyer and two full-time legal assistants in addition to my own
time, as the contribution of Camp Church & Associates to our joint efforts. I advise you
of this only to indicate the nature and extent of the commitment that I consider necessary
on the part of class action counsel.

I cannot leave this letter without commending you and your firm for the
efforts that you have expended to date to become educated on this subject and to educate
Hepatitis C victims on their legal rights.-

Please feel free to give Bruce Lemer or myself a call 1o discuss this matter

further.
Yours truly,
Camr CH 1 & ASSOCIATES
By:
J.
JIC:hp
ce: Bruce Lemer

LT






CONTINGENCY FEE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the ' day of Outober 1997,

t : .
Between This Is Exhibit * B * referréd toin the
Anita Endean
2228 Walker Road
e Prince George, British Columbia
V2K 113
. . (the "Client")
" and:
CAMP CHURCH & ASSOCIATES
**** Barristers & Solicitors
o 4th Floor, Randall Building
555 West Georgia Street
b Vancouver, BC V6B 1Z5
and
BRUCE LEMER
Barrister & Solicitor
- 1550 - 625 Howe Street
s Vancouver, BC V6C 2T6
s (the "Firms")
The parties agree as follows:
A 1. The Firms shall represent the Client in litigation arising out of the illness

and injury suffered by the Client as a result of the transfusion of blood contaminated by

o the Hepatitis C virus (the "Case”). The determination of fault in the Case shall be part
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of the proceeding brought under the Class Proceedings Act, S.B.C. 1995, c.21, known
as Endean v. The Canadian Red Cross et al., British Columbia Supreme Court,
Vancouver Registry No. C965349 (the "Class Proceeding™), in which the Client will be
the representative plaintiff. The determination of the amount of compensation payable
to the Client will follow either by way of settlement or payment of compensation or an

individual damage action.

2. The Client shall pay the Firms as fees for their professional legal services
a percentage of the amount of any settlement or compensation frbm any source pertaining
to the Case or any judgment obtained prior to trial or at trial including prejudgment
interest and postjudgment interest (amounts awarded by the Court for interest on the
judgment before trial and after trial), but excluding taxable party and party costs (an
amount germed by the British Columbia Rules of Court that a successful party mn a
lawsuit can claim to offset legal fees), calculated as follows:
() 25% of the amount of any settlement or compensation from any source
obtained before 6 months prior to the first trial date set in the Case; and
(b) 33 '/,% of any settlement or compensation from any source or judgment
obtained after 6 months prior to the first trial date set in the Case
(the "Contingency Fee").
The phrase "settiement or compensation from any source” in this paragraph includes any
settlement or corﬁpensation offered bonr negotiated directl); or indirectly with the

Canadian Red Cross or any Governmental interests in Canada regardless of whether the
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Client opts out of the Class Proceeding. The Contingency Fee shall be calculated on
any settlement or compensation from any source or any judgment after all case éxpenses

incurred by the Firms have been deducted.

3. If an appeal is taken by the Client or by the defendants from a judgment at
trial, the Client and the Firms shall at the time the Appeal is taken decide whether the

Firms will represent the Client on the Appeal, and if so, on what basis the Firms shall

be paid for legal services provided on the Appeal.

4. Case expenses are those costs incurred by the Firms to prosecute the Case,
including the Class Proceeding. Case expenses include court filing fees, photocopy

charges, couriers, travel expenses, fees paid to agents, experts and other lawyers.

5. The Client authorizes the Firms to pay case expenses to prosecute the Case

as the Firms deem necessary. The Client acknowledges that subject to paragraphs 10 and
13 to 16 inclusive, the Client shall be responsible to pay the following case expenses:

(a)  apro rara share of all case expenses incurred in the Class Proceeding which

benefit the Class Proceeding, including case expenses to obtain class

certification, case expenses incurred to prosecute the common issues

certified by the Court and case expenses incurred by the Client in her role

as rebresentative plaintiff. A"Pm rata share" meaﬁs that the case expens;:s

will be payable by the Client in the same proportion as recovery by the
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Client relative to recovery of all other members of the Class Proceeding;
and

(b)  all case expenses paid for the sole benefit of the Client.

6. In the event of settlement or compensation from any source or judgment
being obtained, the Client shall pay the Contingency Fee and any outstanding case

expenses from the settlement or compensation from any source or judgment proceeds.

7. ' The Client authorizes the Firms to receive in their trust accounts on the
Client’s behalf, any monies to which the Client may become entitled pursuant to a
settlement or compensation from any source or judgment, and the Client agrees that the

Firms may apply any such monies to pay the Contingency Fee and case expenses.

8. The proceeds of any settlement or compensation from any source or
judgment including partial or interim payments, shall be applied to pay all case expenses
outstanding at the date of the payment. The Firms shall be entitled to the Contingency

Fee calculated by the terms set forth in paragraph 2 on the proceeds of any payment.

9. The Client agrees to pay Goods and Services Tax ("GST") and British

Columbia Provincial Sales Tax ("PST") on the Contingency Fee and case expenses.
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10. Subject to paragraphs 13 to 16 inclusive, if no fnoney is recovered by way
of settlement or compensation from any source or judgment, the Contingency Fee and the

case expenses shall not be due to the Firm.

11. Any taxable party and party costs recovered shall be for the sole credit of
the Client. With respect to legal services rendered for the recovery of and the collection
or execution of taxable party and party costs, the Client shall pay the Firms a reasonable

legal fee based on the factors set forth in paragraph 14.

12. The Client shall not negotiate or accept settlement or compensation from any

source pertaining to the Case without the express consent of the Firms.

13. The Firms are entitled to terminate the solicitor client relationship created
and governed by this Agreement if:

(a)  the Client refuses to follow the recommendation of the Firms that the Client
make or accept a specific settlement offer or compensation package which
is reasonable in all the circumstances;

(b) if the Client neglects or refuses to cooperate with the Firms in the
prosecution of the Case;

(¢)  the certification of the Class Proceeding is overturned on appeal or is de-

certified under the Class Proceedings Act, S.B.C. 1995, ¢.21; or
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14.

(d)

the Firms are of the view that for any other reason the Case should not be

pursued.

If the Firms terminate the solicitor client relationship in accordance with

paragraph 13(a) or (b), the Client shall pay to the Firms the case expenses and

professional legal fees (plus applicable GST and PST) for legal services rendered to the

date of termination in accordance with the following considerations:

15.

(@)
)
(c)
()

®
M

(2)

the extent and character of the services rendered;

the labour, trouble and time spent by lawyers, students and legal assistants;
the complexity of the matter and the difficulty of the legal issues involved;
specialized skills, experience, knowledge and responsibility required to

provide the services;

circumstances under which the services are rendered;

the results obtainable if a specific settlement offer had been accepted by the
Client; and

the character and standing in the legal profession of the counsel.

If the Firms terminate the solicitor client relationship in accordance with

paragraph 13(c) or (d), no legal fees or case expenses shall be due and payable to the

Firm.
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16. The Client is entitled to terminate the solicitor client relationship created and
governed by this Agréement at any time. If the Client terminates the solicitor client
relationship before any offer of settlement or compensation from any source has been
made by any party and before a judgment, the Client shall pay to the Firms the case
expenses outstanding and a reasonable legal fee based on the factors set forth in paragraph
14. If the Client terminates the solicitor client relationship after an offer of settlement
or cémpensation from any source has been made by any party or after a judgment has
been obtained, the Client shall pay to the Firms the case expenses outstanding and the
greater of the Contingency Fee as set forth in paragraph 2 as applied to any settlement
or compensation from any source or judgment obtained by the Client after termination,

or a reasonable legal fee based on the factors set forth in paragraph 14.

17. Pursuant to section 38 of the Class Proceedings Act, S.B.C. 1995, c.21 , the
Firms advise that at this time their best estimate is that the expected fee in the Case will
not exceed $150,000. The Firms are unable to provide an expected fee of the Class
Proceeding as a whole because the number of class members and their damages are not

ascertainable at this time.

18. The Firms will apply to the court for approval of this agreement prior to the
fees and disbursements being paid pursunat to section 38 of the Class Proceedings Act,

S.B.C. 1995. c.21.
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19. The Client acknowledges that Firms have recommended that the Client
receive independent legal advice on the fairness of this Agreement and to review the

Agreement with another lawyer prior to signing.

20. The Client acknowledges and confirms that the Client has been advised of
the following provisions of the Legal Profession Act and the Rules of the Law Society of
British Columbia:

(a)  the Client may apply to a district registrar of the Supreme Court of British
Columbia within ninety days after the agreement is made or the retainer
between the solicitor and the Client is terminated by either party, to have
the fairness and reasonableness of this agreement reviewed by a Registrar
of the Supreme Court of British Columbia whether or not payment of fees
Or case expehses has been made;

(b)  upon delivery of a bill for fees, charges or case expenses by the Firm, the
Client may apply to a Registrar of the Supreme Court of British Columbia
for a review of the bill; and

(c)  the Rules of the Law Society of British Columbia provide that, subject to
the Supreme Court approving higher remuneration, the maximum

compensation to which a lawyer-is entitled in a claim for personal injury or
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wrongful death of this type is 40% of the total amount recovered. Fees

charged by different lawyers vary.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have signed this Agreement.

SIGNEI%resenee of: %
. / /////

)
)

o Nagg~ & ¢ W‘/7\_) Anila Endean
06 (h Placl )
) )
)

nye

- %AAA/ Q\M 5€ /e Z(ﬂ_?
Whurch & ASSOCW

SIGNED in the presence of:

' 7?7?22/%/(4/,

o Sﬂﬁi@ C“’ (oL R Aocr‘ NETEQ
4th rL& ) '

Adé}%@, Vi L‘;_-_ whe LIEEDD
- ' VANCOUVER, CANADA V5B 175

N Nt Ml e N N N

SIGNED in the presence of: )

- )
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” et TTIRG
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e VANCQINER CANADA-WER 175 )
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COPY

FILE REFERENCE: 6739

October 8, 1996

Russell & DuMoulin

Barristers & Solicitors

2100 - 1075 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, B.C.

V6E 3G2

Attention: James McMaster

Dear Sirs:

Re: Hepatitis C Class Action

INCTNTETT

Via Legal Alternative

e
HAEN

This is Exhibit * C" * reforrgd to inthe

affidavit of....2

0cT :

NP TaTel
oo G
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After commencement of the action I proposed that we agree that the limitation period relating to
class members would not run from that point until the court’s decision on certification. I confirm that
in our telephone conversation of October 1 you indicated that the CR.C. would not agree that
limitation periods relating to members of the class be postponed pending the determination of the

certification.
Youss truly,

LEMER KAMBAS
Per:

BWL/d wj

ce Ministry of Attorney General
Attention: D. Clifton Prowse

Department of Justice
Attention: John Haig

/Camp Church & Assaciates

Attention: 1J. Camp
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COX, TAYLOR

barristers & solicitors / notaries

TIIRD FLOOR - BURNES HOUSE, 26 BASTION SQUARE

VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBLA
VW tH9

OUR REF. RA66+1" slb

TLLEFHONE (250) 188-4457
TELECORER (25073824236

!

ALLAN L COX, Q.C (1396)
RODNEY J.E. TAYLOX, Q.C.
ASSQCIATE COUNSEL

MURRAY J. HOIMLS

ROBERT T.C. JORNSTON, Q C.
C.LOWARD HANMAN®
FRANK B. CARSON

L JOHN ALEXANDER"
WILLIAM MURFPHY-DYSON
JORN VAN DRIESUAY
SUSAK L. BEACH

VALORIE F. HIMMINCER
KEVIN AL KITSON

AW CORPORATION
YOUR REF.

January 16, 1997

Via facsimile: (604)688-7554
Camp Church & Associalss
4th Floor, 555 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, B.C. This is Bl
V6B 145 ol
effidavit of...«2.y
BRUCE LEMER made before fi
/‘. e’

ATTENTION:

.........................

Dear Sir;

RE: Ruttan v. Vancouver General Hospital and Health Sciences Centre
and the Canadian Red Cross Society, Supreme Court Action No.
06650 Victoria Registry

We act for Randy Ruttan, the plaintiff in the above-noted action. This is an
aclion against the Defendants for, inter alia, negligence in failing to screen blood
and blood products for Hepalitis C resulting in my client contracting Hepatitis C
from the blood and/or blood products. The case, of course, is more complex than
described, but for the purpose of this letter should suffice.

It is increasingly difficull to pursue this claim as a resull of the exorbilant
disbursements that are necessary to be incurred. There are mulliple medical
experts to retain who are highly spacialized in their field and who are expensive.
We would expect that most of the experts would have to testify as well
Unfortunately, as a result of our client’s illness, which is the subject matter of this
action he is not able to work in order to fund his case.

The disbursements, tima and volume of the documentation and complexity of
this case makes it difficull lo pursue these cases singly.

We are wriling this lefter in support of the gpplication for a class action for
persons who have conlracled Hepatitis C ¥rom blood and blood product
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transfuslons.
Yours very truly,

COX, TAYLOR

Per:

A/ﬁra/

-Susan L. Beach

SLB/llv

FAL NO. 1 250 38244236
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MEMORANDUM

FROM: SDM DATE:  June 9, 1997

—

TO: JIC, Bruce Lemer This is Exhiblt* &= * referred to in the

atfidavit of....t5

CLIENT: HEPATITIS C

_~fnade before

RE: - CLASS ACTION

I have reviewed the decision of the Supreme Court of Illinois in Advincula
v. United Blood Services 678 N.E. 2d 1009, decided December 19, 1996. The decision
of the Appellate Court of Illinois is reported at 654 N.E.2d 644.

The issue in that case was the standard of care imposed on a blood bank by

" section 3 of the Blood and Organ Transaction Liability Act (Blood Shield Act).

The case was a wrongful death action brought by the family of a man who
received a transfusion of blood infected with HIV. The plaintiffs alleged that the
defendant, UBS failed to screen high risk donors and did not implement surrogate tests,
including the anti-HBc test, which according to the plaintiffs was at that time proven
effective in screening at-risk donors.

UBS receives donations from voluntary donors only and is a member of
AABB. In the case, the Illinois Supreme Court said as follows about AABB:

UBS is a member of the AABB, an association of blood banks
and blood banking professional engaged int he collection of
whole blood from volunteer donors. AABB promulgates,
establishes and publishes standards and policies for the
collection, processing and distribution of blood, blood
components and tissue by its members. AABB also spects
and accredits its members based on compliance with these
standards and policies and issues advisory recommendations
‘and guidelines. Federal and state govermments generally
accept AABB standards as authoritative.

Section 3 of the Blood Shield Act is entitied "Imposition of Liability” and
reads as follows:

[LTSNp (TITITT T  UYCPPIIRRToTY AT



Every person, firm or corporation involved in the rendition of
any of the services described in Section 2 warrants to the
person, firm or corporation receiving the service and to the
ultimate recipient that he has exercised due care and followed
professional standards of care in providing the service
according to the current state of the medical arts.

At trial, the jury was instructed as follows with respect to the standard of
care:

the care that would be used by reasonably careful blood banks
under the circumstances similar to those shown by the
evidence at and prior to the time Ronald Advincula contracted
the HIV virus. The law does not say how reasonably careful
blood banks would act under the circumstances. That is for
you to decide. '

In determining whether the defendant exercised due care
under the circumstances you may consider:

a. whether defendant complied with its own internal
policies and procedures;

b. the knowledge and methods available at and prior to
February 1984 to educate and screen donors and test
blood;

c. the practices and procedures of the blood banking
industry for screening donors and testing blood;

d. the government’s recommendations and guidelines
governing the collection and processing and
distributing of blood and blood products.

The Supreme Court held that section 3 was ambiguous because the phrase
"exercised due care” refers to a lay, or "reasonable” standard of care, and the phrase
"followed professional standards of care" refers to a professional standard of care. The
Court reviewed the legislative history and the purpose of the legislation to aid in its
construction and found that the legislation was enacted in response to-a 1970 case,
Cunningham v. MacNeal Memorial Hospital, 47 111.2d 443, 266 N.E. 2d 897 in which
the Court held that blood was a product for the purposes of strict tort liability.

In addition, the Court reviewed the common law and held that the basic
difference between "due care” and a "professional standard of care” is that due care is
the degree of care that a reasonable person is bound to exercise and professional are
required not only to exercise reasonable care but also to possess and exercise a standard
minimum of special knowledge and ability: Prosser & Keeton on Torts at 185 (6th ed.,
1996); Miller v. DeWinr 59 I11. App.2d 38, 208 N.E. 2d 249 (1965); Taake v. WHGK,
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Inc., 228 1Il.App.2d 692, 708, 592 N.E.2d 1159 (1992); Eaves v. Hyster Co. 244
I .App.3d 260, 264 and others.

The Court concluded that the correct interpretation of the Blood Shield Act
is that the conduct of an alleged tortfeasor is to evaluated against he standard of care
applicable to professional conduct. The Court considered the evidence that UBS
resembled a corporation more than an association of medical professionals and the blood
screening was conducted by nonprofessionals, but held that the fact that the corporate
decisions and implementation of policies was initially reviewed by the medical director
who is a physician and his judgments involved balancing of competing medica! policies
and procedures and was an exercise of medical judgment.

The Court held that its decision comported with those of a majority of the
jurisdictions which have considered the issue (see WL page 44 of 71 for a list of the
cases).

However, the Court went on to find that the section was not consistent with
the professional standard of care being the exclusive standard of care under s.3. It held
that conformance with professional standards of care, proven.by expert testimony or other
evidence of professional standards, is indicative but not conclusive of due care. This
evidence may be overcome by a sufficient showing of contrary expert opinion testimony
(or 1ts equivalent) that the prevailing professional custom or usage itself constitutes
negligence.

- The Court concluded that the trial court misinterpreted section 3 1o allow
for application of merely a reasonableness standard of care, rather than a professional
standard of care. The case was remanded for retrial.

While this case is closely tied to the language of the statute which governed
the standard of care, the decisions cited in the case and our Ontario case of Pittman point
to blood banking cases being medical negligence cases as opposed to product liability
cases. We should keep these decisions in mind when instructing experts because we will
need to find evidence tending to show that the CRC's actions were outside what was
considered professionally acceptable by blood bankers at the time. The Illinois Supreme
Courl’s characterization of the AABB as a body which set standards accepted by the U.S.
FAA and blood banking community is very helpful 1o us.






CamMP CHURCH & ASSOCIATES

BARRISTERS

N 4th Floor, Randall Building
J.J. Camp, Q.C. 555 West Georgia Street
- 2+ ) Vancouver, B.C.
z :v;?or;ri:f rch Canada V6B 1Z5
Andrew J. Pearson ~ Telephone: (604) 689-7555

Sharon D. Matthews —
Ian G. Schildt To- . Facsimile: (604) 689-7554
FILE REF: 96015/001 November 18, 1997

By Fax No. (613) 952-1154

The Honourable Allan Rock
Minister of Health
Parliament Hill

Ottawa, ON

KIA OA6

Dear Mr. Minister:

Re: Endean v. Canadian Red Cross et al

I am lead counsel on the class action in British Columbia for Hepatitis C
victims who received infected blood between mid-1986 and mid-1990. 1 understand that
you have consulted with some of the organizations and support groups for Hepatitis C
victims along with other counsel who represent Hepatitis C victims. 1 have been working
closely with Harvey Strosberg, Q.C., and others across Canada to formulate litigation and
settlement strategies to attempt to resolve the plight of the Hepatitis C victims without the

added burden which litigation will impose on all parties.

I thought it appropriate to write 1o establish a line ‘of communication to -

facilitate an ea